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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (THE “GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of the GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on the GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on the GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of
this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.

BERBEXZHMARLT (B Al
W ([RIZAR D) 2453

RIERWEN - DAMELEEMRERRF ETHLQ
ATEREREABRNARRE -—BLTHD
5o ARREERTHRERZSLANELER
B WESBEEAFNZBRTFEHRER
- AERNBSERRAMEERTARERR
BEEXRRAMEREEREE -

HRAERETATNHEEEER - ERIER
BENRSZTREERBEIMEREENESE
ERANTERBDER - [ EEREER/ER
BENBSEFSRBENTS -

BRRERABERERLDARBIABEREZ
REBTEE  HEERMRTBUETSFRRE
AR THBRRTBEFIHEREEZHHEM
BoARMELERERBEXEABRMEI R ZER
BAEBEMEE-

IR G TS BIRBIRRES L THAERBEE %
BB FEEERAA ([KRA]) 2EH - &
RAIEEF ([EF]) BHARE B AZTHE
RIEFIAEZEE T - EFLIEL — B HEEH
RIER - RIEEFARIE KRG B EHE
EEAXTEEEETH  WERELHFL
7 BEERTWEMER  HEXRES LR
BT BB ELRE -



CONTENTS

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
. i 2 o < P R R )

Corporate Information

Statement from the Chief Executive Officer
Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Summary

14

23

34

57

59

61

63

64

66

152

H &%

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
TR

NAEER

TR RS
EEE 5w RO
EEkAREREERE
EEARE
BEEeWmE

B ZEERE



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED i [ B 4 il 4 [ A5 BR /A =)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
2 ERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. NG Chee Hung Frederick

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Zhi Da (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCQOY

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHAO Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER
Mr. LIN Wenhui

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LIN Wenhui (Chairman)
Ms. ZHAO Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. ZHAO Guixin (Chairman)
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER
Mr. LIN Wenhui

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. ZHAO Guixin (Chairman)
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER
Mr. LIN Wenhui

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Stefan

Ms. ZHAO Guixin

Mr. LIN Wenhui

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. WONG Yiu Kit Ernest

E=x

BITES

BITRFE R (T ABE)
REIETE

FHUTES

TEERE (£E)
Stephen Gregory McCOY 4

BIYFEHITESE

AL

Cornelis Jacobus KEYSERZ%E 4
MBS A

EREES

MBS A (/)
AL
Cornelis Jacobus KEYSERZE 4

yMEES

HEHEELZLE (£E)
Cornelis Jacobus KEYSERZ 4
M4

REZES

e (FEF)
Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER%E 4
MBS A

TEEREES

Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER%E 4 (/)

BIfREE
HEELT
MBS AE
RNEAMWE

mIRGET A



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy [B 5 4 fil 4 [ 5 BR /A 7

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. NG Chee Hung Frederick

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LIU Stefan
Mr. NG Chee Hung Frederick

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suites 7501 & 7508, 75/F
International Commerce Centre
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon
Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’'s Road, North Point
Hong Kong

(with effect from 5 April 2016)

A18/F., Asia Orient Tower, Town Place
33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

(on or before 4 April 2016)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Aihags)

BREME
REBEE

REAR
BIRwE £
REBFEAE

AR EE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HMEREBTEERBE

BB

NBER @B 15%
RRKE 5 ES
75127501 % 7508 %

MEHETERCBFRELE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

BERDBFRELIE

HE B HFERERAT

BE

bt AR E2E3385%
EMRZ 5 EH2H
33183301-04%
(BZZE—R"FWOARHBER)

BB

B B% e B335k
hREISEEAEA181E
(R=F—R"FHAMAKZAH)



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED i [ B 4 il 4 [ A5 BR /A =)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
2 ERE

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited
Level 16, The National Bank Centre
209 Queen Street, Auckland

New Zealand

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong branch
20 Pedder Street, Central
Hong Kong

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
8th Floor, 10 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Citibank, N.A.

44th Floor, Citibank Tower
Citibank Plaza

3 Garden Road, Central
Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Quam Capital Limited

18th-19th Floors, China Building
29 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

8077

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.kvblistco.com

FEFRRIT

ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited
Level 16, The National Bank Centre
209 Queen Street, Auckland

New Zealand

RBRITRODAERARTEENTT
BB
RIRFEFTE205%

RGRITARAF
HE
fEEET 105%818

TETRIRTT

BB
PIRTEEB35R
TEIRIRTT B
TEFRIRTTAE 4412

BRER

EERALEMEARAR
o

ERKET29%
EAITIBE19E

BB

ERROKEG BT
EGETRD

BE

iR

KFRE221E

i griaeid
8077

DR

www.kvblistco.com



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy [B 5 4 fil 4 [ 5 BR /A 7

STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear shareholders of KVB Kunlun:

On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 to our shareholders and investors.

The Group’s development in 2015 was satisfactory in general.
During the year, the total revenue has increased from HK$188.6
million in 2014 to HK$406.8 million in 2015, and an annual
profit of HK$94.7 million was recorded, which represented
approximately 270% to that of 2014. Newly registered customers
of foreign currency margin trading increased by 270% compared
to that in 2014. We are delighted to see our revenue growth and
climbing number of new customers. | wish to express thanks to
our customers and shareholders for their trust and support, and
to our employees for their contributions to the development of
the Group.

It was not easy for the Group to achieve such performance as
the foreign exchange market, commodity market and equity
market in which we were involved were plagued by crises
throughout the year of 2015. The global foreign exchange
industry was heavily struck by substantial fluctuation of Swiss
franc exchange rate at the beginning of the year. We managed
to get through with our wise trading strategies, rigorous risk
control and rapid response, reflecting the Group’s efficient and
pragmatic risk management and control. The Group successfully
introduced CITIC Securities as a new strategic shareholder in
the mid-year. The acquisition generated a huge response in
the global foreign exchange retail market, and was regarded
as a milestone in the development of China’s foreign exchange
industry. Our institutional customers, retail and high net worth
customers increased by 98% during the year as a result of our
active development of mutually beneficial relationships between
institutions, expansion of channels and enhancement of brand
image, as well as improvement of our customer need- and
experience-oriented service system. As we consistently consider
the financial information technology as the most critical factor
for the Group’s success, we continued to invest more capital
to secure absolutely safe operation of the core trade execution
server and ForexStar trading system, so as to achieve most rapid
paralleled transactions of substantially increased customers and
data stabilization. We continued to improve the risk management
measures for market participants to achieve the best balance
between security and capital efficiency.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AT B R R

In 2016, KVB Kunlun enters its 15th year since its establishment.
While celebrating its 15th anniversary with the theme of
“Accompanied by Integrity and Wisdom(# & #8£)” in a number
of international cities, the Group is also facing various major
historical opportunities: accelerated internationalization of RMB,
continuous implementation of national strategic objective of
One Belt and One Road and commencement of globalization
deployment by more domestic enterprises etc. As such, it will
become a norm for RMB to be linked to more non-US dollar
currencies and it will lead to solid demand for hedging of
transactions and risks, which will result in potential explosive
growth in China’s foreign exchange industry. These predictable
trends are bringing huge business opportunities and momentum
for KVB Kunlun and its shareholders. Looking ahead, we remain
confident in spite of many unpredictable difficulties. The Group’s
forward-looking strategic objectives and plans have included the
above dynamics, with an aim to seek success through healthy
development. The successful implementation of future strategic
plan will help us to strengthen our existing leadership and
become a leader among its peers in global foreign exchange
trading, and create greater value for our shareholders, investors
and customers that develop and grow together with KVB Kunlun.

Liu Stefan
Executive director and chief executive officer

18 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015, together
with the audited comparative figures for the corresponding year
in 2014,

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Business review

During the year under review, we achieved a very strong growth
in profitability due to the improving market conditions. Trading
conditions were more favorable as the overall volatility returned
in foreign exchange and commodity markets compared to the
multi-year low in the year of 2014. We have seen significant
growth in the business, in terms of revenue, trading volumes,
and profit. Despite a volatile movement in the global markets,
with our solid and effective risk management we successfully
tided over many financial storms during the year of 2015. The
market momentum also uplifted the number of new clients and
the clients’ net deposits experienced a large amount of increase.
With the improving business conditions, our financial outcomes
were very impressive in the year of 2015.

EUR/USD and XAU/USD were the most popular trading products
during the year under review, followed by GBP/USD, AUD/USD
and CHINA300. CHINA300 CFD trading became very popular,
such that the trading volume continued to grow significantly
during the year. In FX category, EUR/USD, GBP/USD and AUD/
USD are the top three pairs in terms of trading volumes. EUR/
USD price experienced a down trend during the year. The EUR/
USD price range was 1.2100 high and 1.0450 low. GBP/USD
was trading in the range of 1.5920 high to 1.4560 low. AUD/USD
also experienced a down trend, trading in the range of 0.8290
high to 0.6890 low. XAU/USD and Crude oil were the two most
traded products in the commodity category. Commodity prices
were constantly under pressure during the year due to the China
economy slowdown. Crude oil price dropped to $37 USD/barrel
at the year end, the price range was 62.50 high and 34.50 low
during the year. Meanwhile, gold was traded in the range of
$1,307-$1,046 USD/ounce.
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The year of 2015 was a successful, challenging and exciting

year for the Group. We are very proud of the achievement made

during the year. We launched three new index-CFD products this
year, in order to meet the demands of our clients and provide
more investment opportunities to our valued clients in the global

financial markets.

Total income

The total income of the Group increased by approximately

115.7% to approximately HK$406.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 from approximately HK$188.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

A.

Leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income
of the Group increased by approximately 137.9% to
approximately HK$343.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 from approximately HK$144.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014. This is mainly due to
the higher trading volume and market volatility during the
year ended 31 December 2015 as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Cash dealing income

The cash dealing income of the Group decreased by
approximately 30.8% from approximately HK$16.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 to HK$11.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the lower trading volume,
especially after the China share market crisis during
the middle of the year, the risk and volatility of markets
KVB adopted a
more conservative trading strategy in the cash dealing

increased significantly, as a result,

business.

Fee and commission income

The fees and commission income of the Group increased
from approximately HK$23.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to approximately HK$48.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The increase was mainly
due to increase in trading volume.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

D. Other Income

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
recorded an exchange loss of approximately HK$1.3
million while there was an exchange gain of approximately
HK$0.2 million during the year ended 31 December
2014. This was mainly due to the year-end translation of
monetary assets denominated in foreign currency into
local reporting currency by KVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income of the Group decreased
to approximately HK$1.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 from approximately HK$2.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. This is mainly due to the
Group no longer receiving management fee income from
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries which
do not belong to the Group (collectively, the “Non-Listed
Group”) as a result of further business separation from
the Non-Listed Group.

Fees and commission expenses

The fees and commission expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 97.1% to approximately HK$120.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 from approximately HK$61.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase was
mainly due to increase in the trading volume of clients referred
by service providers.

Staff costs

The staff costs of the Group increased to approximately HK$80.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 from approximately
HK$36.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
increase was mainly due to increase in staff entittement and
expenses recognised in respect of staff share option.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by approximately
72.1% to approximately HK$5.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 from approximately HK$3.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The increase was mainly due to the
upgrade of computer software and the newly capitalized office
equipment for the year under review.
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Lease payments under land and buildings

Lease payments under land and buildings increased by
approximately 43.9% to approximately HK$9.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 from approximately HK$6.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase
was mainly due to the increased rental expenses in Hong Kong
office, as it no longer shares office space with other companies
in the non-listing group and also the Zhuhai office rented a new
office since October 2015.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group
increased to approximately HK$60.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 from approximately HK$33.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. This increase was primarily
due to the increase in marketing expenses by approximately
HK$6.3 million during the year ended 31 December 2015 as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2014 as the
result of special marketing event sponsored in 2015. Customer
promotion expenses also increased by approximately HK$7.0
million during the year ended 31 December 2015 as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2014 as the result of active
promotion activities occurred in 2015.

Net profit and net profit margin

For the reasons set forth above, the Group achieved a net
profit of approximately HK$94.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 compared with the net profit of approximately
HK$35.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
net profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately 23.3%.

In summary, the increase in profitability of the Group was
primarily contributed by:

. higher market volatility and higher trading volume which
resulted in higher leveraged foreign exchange and other

trading income.

. higher transaction volume due to an increase in number of
customers resulting in higher fee and commission income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year under review, the operations of the Group have
been financed principally by equity capital, cash generated
by the Group’s business operations and the cash and bank
deposits.

As at 31 December 2015, cash and bank balances held by the
Group amounted to HK$467.0 million (2014: HK$389.2 million).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net debts (financial
lease obligation and amounts due to other related parties)
over the total shareholders’ fund as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately 0.03% (2014: 0.15%).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group recorded an exchange
loss of approximately HK$1.3 million (2014: approximately
gain of HK$0.2 million). This was mainly due to the month
end translation of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency into local reporting currency by the subsidiary of the
Group in New Zealand. The main contributor to this result was
the appreciation of USD and the exchange rate of USD/NZD
changed from approximately 1.2760 as at 31 December 2014
to 1.4611 as at 31 December 2015. The foreign currency risk is
managed proactively by regular review of the currency positions
in the basket of currency mix. In order to minimize the exposure
of the Group to risk, the Group has hedge strategy based on
prevailing market conditions and working capital requirements
of sub-companies.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the capital structure of the Group
consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.
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I Z ke S a3 A

NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group launched an offshore China Stock Index (CHINA-A50),
US Nasdag100 Index(NQ100), European DAX Index(DX30) and
introduced a new commodity product, namely Rubber contracts
for difference (CFD).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group engaged a total of 89
employees (2014: 64). Total staff costs including Directors’
remuneration for the period under review amounting to
approximately HK$80.7 million (2014: HK$36.5 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of
performance and experience of individual employees. The Group
provides retirement benefits in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the place where the staff is employed.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to
which the Directors and employees of the Group are entitled to
participate.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, certain bank balances of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$94.0 million were used to
secure the banking facilities and the office lease bonds. As
at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The future investment plans of the Group are detailed in the
sub-section headed “Business objectives and future plans”

in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 June 2013 (the
“Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We plan to:

1. expand operations in the worldwide overseas Chinese
and Japanese communities;

2. increase in the range of our financial services and
products;

3. further upgrade our online trading platform; and

4. strategically grow through mergers and acquisitions.

The source of funding for these investment plans is from the net
proceeds of the Placing of approximately HK$125.3 million. Our
Directors presently intend that the net proceeds will be applied
as follows:

I Z ke S g A

HEE
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Actual
Intended approximate
usage up to  utilized up to
Intended 31 December 31 December
amount 2015 2015
S
Bz —E-If
“%-5% +ZA=+-H
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HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Expansion of operations in the worldwide BRZIEINEARBBREER
overseas Chinese and Japanese
communities 36,000 36,000 12,558
Increase in the range of our financial ZEnNeBRERERNESR
services and products 35,000 35,000 -
Further upgrade of our online trading E—PREREENRERFTFA
platform 28,000 28,000 18,290
Strategic growth through mergers and BERHERBIEMIER
acquisitions 21,000 21,000 -

During the year under review, the resources was mainly focusing
in the existing New Zealand region instead of expanding new
worldwide overseas Chinese and Japanese communities.

The Group had developed new financial services and products
through internally generated funding during the year under
review.

The Group spent HK$10.6 million in 2015 to revamp the network
in order to keep on improving the efficiency, security, availability
and manageability of the online trading platform.

The Group has yet to find the suitable target on mergers and
acquisition activity.
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The biographical details in respect of the directors (the
“Directors”) and the senior management of KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) as at the date of this annual report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Stefan (2IfRF#5L4), aged 49, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu is one of the responsible
officers of KVB Kunlun International (HK) Limited (“KVB HK”)
and is also a director of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB
Holdings”) and certain subsidiaries of KVB Holdings which do
not belong to the Group.

Mr. Liu was appointed the managing director of the Group in
March 2006 and the country manager of New Zealand and
Australia in August 2011. He was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 9 November 2010 and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic development of the Group.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as the managing
director of Aiming International (New Zealand) Co. Limited from
August 1997 to August 2001 and was responsible for fostering
the development plan, structuring investment direction and
strategy, liaising and maintaining relationships with business
partners and searching for and maintaining public relationship
with potential strategic investors.

With his previous and current positions in the Group and other
companies, Mr. Liu has obtained over 13 years of experience in
the forex market which is relevant to the management, operation
and development of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s
degree in arts from the Tianjin Foreign Studies University (X2
SMNEIFEREZR) in July 1989.

Mr. NG Chee Hung Frederick (2554 ), aged 60, joined the
Group in August 2006 and has been an executive director of
KVB HK since June 2009. Mr. Ng is responsible for managing
the operations of KVB HK and the treasury and dealing functions
of the Group. Mr. Ng is also the executive director and one of the
responsible officers of each of KVB HK and certain subsidiaries
of KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group.

14

RAFHREH  FRAERRBEREMEEGRAR
(IARRAR EEEMBARGHEIAEE]) &
ZF(E=F) LafEEENRENT -

HITES

BIfRFE K% - 495% - RARBIITEAR « IR
REAATIETHEBARINES - AL RERE
X (E8) BRAF ([KVBEB]) MBEAEZ
— o 21 A IR AKVB Kunlun Holdings Limited
([KVB Holdings]) k& FTBRAEERKVB
HoldingsHi B A RIMES -

BIEER _TTERF-ARZERAEEANES
REEERN -_T——F \AEZERATER R
MOREERE - KR —_T—TF+—ANBER
ERARAESR  AEAKENRREE MR
R e

MARERER  BEER—NNEFENREZ
T ZF—F \ AEFAIming International (New
Zealand) Co. LimitedZEE4KIE - B EE %
BErE REBRIRE M RRE - BEEERES
ERHENBRARDEL EIFEBIRERES
M AFRER o

BREBISCAR AR E R E A BB E IR
B REREAKEER  CERERBHENIN
FEMIHEBI3FLR - BIEER—N/\NFLH
BRRZINEBRBEXE LB -

REMWEE 6058 RZZEAFNAMALE
CWEHZEENF N ARBEEKVBEEHINIT
BE - RAELBEEIEKVBEAMEENAER
MAEERHTIIE - REENMAKVBEERET
TEBRAEEKKVB HoldingsHE A R& B HH
TEERBEABZ—-



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy [B 5 4 fil 4 [ 5 BR /A 7
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Mr. Ng is also a director of each of LXL Capital IV Limited,
LXL Capital VIII Limited, LXL Capital IX Limited, LXL Capital V
Limited and Yorkastle Capital Limited. Mr. Ng has over 31 years
of experience in the financial services industry. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Ng had worked at corporations in Hong Kong,
Toronto, Tokyo, Singapore and Shanghai. From 2002 to 2006, Mr.
Ng was the managing partner of Quantitative Asset Management
Group which was engaged in asset management and he was
responsible for managing and overseeing daily operations
including all trade execution and reconciliation. From June 1992
to January 2002, Mr. Ng was employed with Credit Agricole
Group (a banking group based in France) and served in various
positions including vice president and regional forex manager —
North Asia, senior vice president and head of forex trading hub
— Asia, treasurer — China, and head of sales of Greater China
and assistant general manager of capital markets. From October
1978 to January 1992, Mr. Ng was employed with the Royal Bank
of Canada and last held the position of forex manager. Mr. Ng
is a member of the Institute of Public Accountants, Australia
and a certified member of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants, Australia. Mr. Ng was appointed as a Director on
15 April 2011.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Zhi Da (=EE% %), aged 62, is the chairman of the
board of Directors. Mr. Li is one of the founders of the Group
and one of the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Li
was a director of each of KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited and
KVB HK since their respective incorporation until May 2009 and
June 2009, respectively. Mr. Li is also a director of each of KVB
Holdings, LXL Capital | Limited and LXL Capital Il Limited. Mr.
Li was the legal representative of a private company engaged
in the business of production and sales of cosmetics in the
PRC, including the brand “Mininurse”. Since the disposal of the
cosmetics business in December 2003, Mr. Li has diversified his
investments into other business areas including tourism business
in the PRC. Mr.
management from the Zhejiang University (7T X2) in March

Li obtained his master’'s degree in project

1994. Mr. Li was appointed as a Director on 30 August 2011.
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Mr. Stephen Gregory McCOY, aged 63, joined the Group in
October 2006 as the senior manager of operations and was
later appointed the country manager of Australia in 2008. Mr.
McCoy is also a director of KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd and LXL Capital
[l Limited. Mr. McCoy is also a director of other subsidiaries of
KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. McCoy worked at Arab Bank Australia Limited as
an internal auditor from May 2002 to December 2003 and later
as the head of operations from January 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for managing the operations department of
the bank including treasury settlements, retail operations, loan
administration, office administration, trade finance and product
compliance in line with regulatory authorities and policies and
procedures of the bank and before that, Mr. McCoy worked at
Westpac Banking Corporation for over 30 years from February
1969 to April 2001 and last held the position of manager of
operational risk. With the previous and current positions held
by Mr. McCoy in the Group and other companies, Mr. McCoy
has obtained over 43 years of combined experience in the
financial services industry which is relevant to the operation
and development of the Group. Mr. McCoy was appointed as a
Director on 15 April 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Guixin (fH#E2 % I), aged 52, joined the Group in
April 2011. From June 2005 to July 2007, Ms. Zhao worked at
Tianjin Jiandu Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (KZEH%
&2 R AR A T]) which was engaged in property and investment
and she was responsible for providing consultation services in
project financing, cooperation in public affairs and international
investment matters. From May 2003 to August 2007, Ms. Zhao
also provided consultation services in finance and investment
related matters to Tianjin Wanhe Investment & Development Co.
Ltd. (REEFKE R BRR A7) which was engaged in property
and investment. From July 2001 to October 2003, Ms. Zhao
was appointed as the general manager of the audit department
of China Citic Bank, Tianjin branch and was responsible for
managing the overall performance of the audit department,
implementing policies and procedures and other management
work. Ms. Zhao has over 23 years of experience in accounting
and auditing matters including but not limited to financial
analysis, financial management, asset management, assessment
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and auditing of financial positions and involvement in financial
and auditing decision making process. Ms. Zhao completed the
course in economics and management organised by the Party
School of Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (
R H AR ER) in December 1996. Ms. Zhao further completed
the course in business administration organised by Nankai
University (FIBIRE) in September 1999 and obtained her
master’s degree in arts in international relations in economy and
trade from The Flinders University of South Australia in October
2002. Ms. Zhao was assessed and awarded the qualification of
accountant by the Tianjin branch of the Bank of China in 1992.
Ms. Zhao was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER, aged 58, first joined the Group
in December 2003 as a senior consultant. In June 2005, he
was appointed as the joint Group managing director (group
operations and treasury) and managing director (designate
proposed banking division) and held that position until he left
the Group in April 2008. Since March 2003, Mr. Keyser has been
a director of Keyser Merchant & Capital Finance (New Zealand)
Limited which is engaged in the provision of consultation
services and he is responsible for managing all aspects of such
company and acts as a consultant. From July 1999 to August
2002, Mr. Keyser held the position of group treasurer to Gensec
Ltd. and Gensec Bank. From September 1996 to March 1997,
Mr. Keyser worked at the Swabou Building Society Group of
Companies as the group managing director and was responsible
for the operations of the group. From May 1990 to August 1992,
Mr. Keyser was appointed the managing director of Keyser
Trading (Pty) Limited and from September 1992 to June 1999,
he was appointed the managing director of Keyser Merchant and
Capital Finance (Pty) Limited. Mr. Keyser is a chartered member
of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand Inc. and a member
of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Mr. Keyser
has over 23 years of experience in the financial industry. Mr.
Keyser obtained his bachelor’s degree in industrial psychology,
his honours degree in economics (Cum laude) and his master’s
degree in economics (Cum laude) from the Rand Afrikaans
University in April 1981, April 1982 and April 1983, respectively.
Mr. Keyser was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.
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Mr. LIN Wenhui (FA3038 % 4), aged 37, joined the Group in July
2011. Mr. Lin has been an audit manager of Deloitte Touche
With effect from
1 July 2014, Mr. Lin is temporarily transferred to the Board of

Tohmatsu in Beijing since September 2011.

Supervisors of SAC in the State Council for the inspection of
enterprises directly under the central government. From April
2009 to September 2011, Mr. Lin was a manager of RSM China
Certified Public Accountants (FInEES:HEMIEMHAT). Mr. Lin
served as a project manager in the taxation and accounting
services department of Reanda Certified Public Accountants (¥l
ZEGTAIEEARET2AR]) from September 2004 to March
2006 and a manager assistant in the audit department of the
same firm from April 2006 to December 2008. From August 2002
to September 2004, Mr. Lin worked in the accounting department
of the head company of the Beijing Shougang Oxygen Plant (
IR E S RM) which was engaged in the production and
sales of oxygen and other gases for industrial enterprises.
Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor's degree in accounting from the
Harbin University of Commerce (FMEERE S ARZ) in July 2002.
Mr. Lin obtained his certificate of accounting professional from
the Finance Bureau of Beijing (JtEMHE/E) in June 2003
and passed the PRC’s national accounting examinations and
was awarded the certificate issued by the Committee of the
Registered Accountant Examination of the Ministry of Finance (
B EMEstiiEsZ 8 €) in April 2005. Mr. Lin has been a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
recognised by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (fF# AR M
B 81 B ER) since April 2008. Mr. Lin was appointed as a Director
on 16 July 2011.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (F12#t 5 4E)is the Chief Financial
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr.
Wong has extensive experience in venture capital, corporate
finance, business development, legal, IT, financial and general
management. Mr. Wong has been the President and Group
Chief Financial Officer of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited since
November 2011. Previously he was the Executive Director
and Chief Financial Officer of China Private Equity Investment
Holdings Limited which is listed on London AIM market. He was
in charge of the private equity investment, portfolio management,
corporate finance activities including fund raising and initial
public offering, financial management, legal services, IT and
company secretarial work. Before that, Mr. Wong was the
Chief Financial Officer for Hong Kong Applied Science and
Technology Research Institute Company Limited (“ASTRI”) and
held management responsibilities for its overall financial, legal,
IT, business development and corporate finance functions.
Before joining ASTRI, Mr. Wong was the vice president for Vertex
Management Pte Ltd (now known as Vertex Venture Holdings
Ltd), focusing in venture investment in communications, IT
and electronics sectors. Previously, he also held management
positions at Guangdong Investment Ltd., Transpac Capital
Limited and Accenture.

Mr. Wong earned his Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from the University of Hong Kong, received his Master
of Science in investment management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and Master of Science
in Electronic Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, United Kingdom; and is an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is also a charter-holder of Chartered Financial
Analyst, United States of America and a member of the Hong
Kong Security Institute.
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OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. ZHANG Rongjun (R/AZF %= L) is the regional financial
controller of New Zealand and Australia of the Group. Ms. Zhang
joined the Group in December 2002 as the financial controller.
Ms. Zhang has also been a director of KVB NZ since May
2009. From December 1997 to July 2002, Ms. Zhang served
as a senior accountant at HWI Limited Chartered Accountants
and was responsible for preparing financial statements and
tax returns and providing tax advice. Ms. Zhang has over 18
years of experience in accounting matters in New Zealand.
Ms. Zhang obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from
the Unitec Institute of Technology in April 2000. Ms. Zhang has
been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New
Zealand since January 2002.

Mr. HUANG Songyuan (EMEJRL4) is the director of global
margin business. Mr. Huang is also responsible for the
management of investment business of the Group, including
foreign exchange, commodities and equities business. He is
currently one of the responsible officers of KVB HK and KVB AU,
and a director and managing principal of KVB NZ. Mr. Huang
joined the Group in August 2002 as an executive accountant
of KVB NZ and was responsible for general accounting duties,
book-keeping and financial reports. Mr. Huang was the manager
of treasury strategy of KVB NZ and was responsible for the
implementation of its dealing system and the day-to-day running
of its global forex dealing operations and all its associated
financial management. Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor’s
degree in accounting from the Sun Yat-Sen University (FF 1L K 28)
in June 1999, his master’s degree in international business from
the Auckland Institute of Studies at St. Helens, New Zealand in
December 2000 and his graduate diploma in commerce from
the University of Auckland in May 2002. Mr. Huang became a
chartered financial analyst of the CFA Institute in September
2006. Mr. Huang has been a member of the Institute of Directors
in New Zealand since 2015.
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Mr. SO Chi Hang Stephen (i 5 1B 50 4) is the head of investment
of KVB AU. Mr. So joined the Group in May 2003 as a senior
sales executive of margin forex of KVB AU. He has been the
Responsible Manager (RM) of the Australian Financial Services
License (AFSL) for the company since then. Mr. So is at
present a director of KVB AU. Before joining the Group, Mr. So
worked at The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited and Lippo
Securities Holdings Limited from March 1994 to December
2002 and was responsible for providing investment advice and
dealing with private clients and retail clients, first as a senior
investment consultant in The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited
and thereafter as a senior manager of the global investment
division of Lippo Securities Holdings Limited. Mr. So has over
23 years of experience in advising clients on financial products
ranging from securities, indices and stock futures and options,
foreign exchanges and other derivatives financial products.
Mr. So obtained his bachelor of arts degree (Economics)
from the University of Sydney, Australia in April 1992. Mr. So
also obtained the diploma in financial services issued by the
Australian Financial Markets Association in 2003.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes
in Directors’ information during the year under review and up to
the date of this annual report are as follows:

(1)

22

The director’'s fee of Mr. Liu Stefan has been increased
from HK$10,000 per month to HK$20,000 per month with
effect from 1 January 2016.

The director’s fee of Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick has
been increased from HK$10,000 per month to HK$20,000
per month with effect from 1 January 2016.

The director’s fee of Mr. Li Zhi Da has been increased
from HK$60,000 per annum to HK$120,000 per annum
with effect from 1 January 2016.

The director’s fee of Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy has been
increased from HK$60,000 per annum to HK$120,000 per
annum with effect from 1 January 2016.

The director’s fee of Ms. Zhao Guixin has been increased
from HK$120,000 per annum to HK$240,000 per annum
with effect from 1 January 2016.

The director’s fee of Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
has been increased from HK$120,000 per annum to
HK$240,000 per annum with effect from 1 January 2016.

The director’s fee of Mr. Lin Wenhui has been increased
from HK$120,000 per annum to HK$240,000 per annum
with effect from 1 January 2016.

RIFRIZER ETRAIZE17 50A M - REIEF A K
BEEARFHRAY BEFEMEENT :

(1)

3)

(6)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to high standards
of corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders. It
has continued and will continue to identify and adopt the best

corporate governance practices appropriate to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in the Appendix 15
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) is responsible for the formulation of strategies
and policies, including an oversight of the management. The
management of the Company is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Company under the leadership of the chief
executive officer.

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised seven Directors,
including (i) two executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Stefan
(as chief executive officer) and Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick;
Li Zhi Da (as
Stephen Gregory McCoy; and (iii) three

(if) two non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
chairman) and Mr.
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin,
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. One of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui,
has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a specific term, and his term of office is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and the GEM
Listing Rules. For all non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, the term of them has been fixed at 3
years and is also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
and the GEM Listing Rules.
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In determining the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has followed the requirements set out in
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Company is of the view
that all the independent non-executive Directors have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and considers that they are independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and for ensuring that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner, while the chief executive officer, supported
by other members of the Board and the senior management,
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business, including the implementation of major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Group. The roles of the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer are assumed by Mr. Li Zhi
Da, a non-executive Director, and Mr. Liu Stefan, an executive
Director, respectively.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. A circular which
includes the biographical details of the retiring Directors who
stand for re-election together with the notice of annual general
meeting of the Company will be despatched to the shareholders
of the Company in due course.
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BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year of
approximately quarterly intervals. Between scheduled meetings,
senior management of the Company from time to time meets with
Directors to discuss the businesses of the Group. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary
by the Directors.

SR IR
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board held six #HE-_ZT—AF+_A=+—HAIFE EF<
board meetings and the Company held one general meeting, HEBITTNABESE:H  AQARRTT AR
and the attendance records of these meetings are set out below: HRA® @ ZS S FE LMD T ¢
Attendance
Board General
meetings meetings
HE

EESSE BRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Stefan BIfREE A& 6/6 11
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick RIEBEA 6/6 11
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Li Zhi Da EHESLE 4/6 1/1
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy %4 6/6 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors B IEHITES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HER T 6/6 0/1
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 6/6 11
Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS 5/6 11

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’
and officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by
them in the discharge of their duties while holding office as the
Directors and officers of the Company.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
arranged an in-house seminar for the Directors on the topic
of Connected Transactions. All Directors had attended this
seminar.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 18 December 2012 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. Written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the Code
has been adopted. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate the performance and determine
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group, and evaluate the performance
and make recommendations on any other employee benefit
arrangement. At present, the Remuneration Committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao
Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms.
Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31

SR IR

HE_Z-—RAFTA=1+—BLEFE FMZE
BgRTTMAER BE_THF+-A=
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December 2015 are set out below: ™
Attendance
HE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HiERZE (FE) 212
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 2/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board (i)
the salary increment for the executive directors and the senior
management of the Company in 2015; and (ii) the granting
of share options to Directors and other eligible participants
under the share option scheme of the Company adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a written resolution dated 3 June 2013.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code has
been adopted. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding nomination of suitable candidate to fill vacancies in
the Board. At present, the Nomination Committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao
Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms.
Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. Details of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee meeting are set out below:

“E-RFT A=t -HULEFE REZ
BT -RER - -RLZEEERLF LI

Attendance

HE

Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) WMHEZ2Lt (FEF) 1/1
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 1/1

Mr. Lin Wenhui MR e 4
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee has considered and reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the process and criteria to select
and recommend candidates for directorship. The Nomination
Committee recommended the Board to approve the proposed
sequence for re-election of retiring Directors in 2016 annual
general meeting. The Nomination Committee considers that the
existing policy for nomination, selection and recommendation
for directorship are suitable.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the boardroom. The Board has therefore adopted a board
diversity policy which stated that the Board sees diversity as
a wide concept and believes that a diversity of perspectives
can be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race, gender and other qualities. In
informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also
take into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Board believes that such merit-based appointments will best
enable the Company to serve its clients, shareholders and other
stakeholders going forward.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 19 December 2012 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems
of the Company, nominate and monitor external auditors and
provide advice and comments to the Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui, Ms. Zhao Guixin
and Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser. Mr. Lin Wenhui is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditor of the Group
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of this report and financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee
held four meetings. The attendance records of the Audit
Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out below:
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Attendance

R

Mr. Lin Wenhui (Chairman) MXBEE (FE) 4/4
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEERZ T 3/4
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 4/4

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management and the auditors of the Company
their audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, legal and regulatory compliance, and
financial reporting matters.

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “CG Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph D.3.1 of the Code has
been adopted. The primary duties of the CG Committee are to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendation to the Board.
At present, the CG Committee consists of four members, namely,
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser, Mr. Liu Stefan, Ms. Zhao Guixin
and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser is the chairman
of the CG Committee. All members are independent non-
executive Directors, except Mr. Liu Stefan, who is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the CG Committee held
two meetings. Details of the attendance of the CG Committee
meeting(s) are set out below:

——FF+ AT NBRIGEE
TEERLZEE]) - i@ﬂ%ﬂ%%ﬁ
EDIIBRMEWERMD - BEER
E’szﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ ABUR i%
BHEkmMESRLER - R m%a/né

Uﬂ}x /U]]U Z\G ﬂﬂ}*
/Ilﬂﬂ o ) D> oy

@/EMNEKE - BlCornelis Jacobus Keyser
A BIRGELAE  MEBLLERMELE -

Cornelis Jacobus Keyserft £ A2 EAREE
BXEF FIBEXNEHRBIUIFNITES - HEEIMR
HEERIN  BAARBRNITESRITHEE
BHE_ZT—RAFTA=T—HLLFE  tXE
REZEEERITTMAEH DEEARZEZERE

HELSFINIT

Attendance

HE

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser (Chairman) Cornelis Jacobus Keyserft4 (/&) 2/2
Mr. Liu Stefan BIRFE ST E 2/2
Ms. Zhao Guixin HERLZ LT 2/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS A 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the CG Committee
has considered and reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance framework, policies and practices on corporate
governance. The CG Committee discussed the corporate
governance model for the Company,
framework of corporate governance of the Group and is tasked

recommended the

to coordinate implementation of the agreed framework across
the Group, via an appointed task team of directors representing
each Group company. The CG Committee considers that the
existing policies and practices of corporate governance of the
Company are suitable.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirement and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems
of internal control and risk management to safeguard the
Company’s assets and shareholders’ interests, and, with the
Audit Committee, for reviewing areas of risk and uncertainty, the
operation and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal
control and the procedures by which these are monitored.
The internal audit department of the Company (“Internal Audit
Department”) is delegated to ensure and maintain sound internal
control functions by monitoring such internal control systems
and procedures constantly so as to ensure that they can provide
reasonable assurance against misstatement or loss and to
manage risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems.
The internal audit function is independent of the operating
businesses of the Group.

The systems of internal control are designed to manage but not
eliminate business risk, to help safeguard the Group’s assets
against fraud and other irregularities, and to give reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material financial misstatement or
loss. In addition, it should provide a basis for the maintenance of
proper and fair accounting records and assist in the compliance
with relevant rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed all material
internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control. It also reviewed with the Audit Committee and the
information from the Internal Audit Department in respect of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems, adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function and
satisfied that they were effective and in compliance with the

Group’s policies.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 were performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”).

The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provided by PwC is set out in the following
table:

BB ET BN &

AEEHE_Z-RAF+ _A=+t—HLFEHN
BB TFEBEIRICES A EBAT ([
KIB) T e

SR R BUGER BN B RIZE BT R IIERZIRG
BN ENNEERSENTE

2015 2014

—ZT-HF —ZT-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAETT

Audit services EZ RS 2,931 2,355
Non-audit services FEE LIRS 252 293
Total B 3,183 2,648

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

During the year under review, the Company Secretary undertook

over 15 hours of professional training in compliance with Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, any one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

In the event that any shareholders of the Company holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company would like to call for an
extraordinary general meeting, please make a written requisition
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong from time
to time, making attention to “The Board of Directors and the
Company Secretary”.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meetings under the memorandum
and articles of association. If shareholders wish to do so, they
may request to convene an extraordinary general meeting as
stipulated above and specify the proposals in such written
requisition.

For any enquiries, shareholders are welcome to contact the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong, by phone at (852) 3120 8888 or by fax at (852) 3120 8800.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM
website (http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s
corporate website (http://www.kvblistco.com) as soon as
practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on both websites. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, there have not been any significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Review and Future Prospect

Since the listing of the shares of the Company on GEM on 3 July
2013, the Company has been implementing its business plans
to accomplish its business objectives. A review of the business
of the Group during the year and a discussion on the Group’s
future business development are provided in the Statement
from the Chief Executive Officer on pages 5 to 6 of this Annual
Report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 7 to 13
of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s principal business activities are exposed to a
variety of key risks including credit risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk, operational risk and market risk. The Directors will
constantly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and may
change or modify plans against the changing market condition
to avert or minimise the risks so as to attain sustainable business
growth of the Group. Details of the aforesaid key risks and risk
mitigation measures are set out in “Financial Risk Management”
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We are committed to protect the environment by introducing
a green policy to enhance the awareness of environmental
protection among staff. The Group has implemented internal
recycling programme for office consumables such as toner
cartridges and paper to minimise the operation impact on the
environment and natural resources.
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The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in
offices and branch premises where applicable, such as taking
initiatives to reduce paper usage by encouraging the use of
websites and online version of corporate communications.
As regards reduction of power consumption, lighting, air-
conditioners and office equipment will be turned off when not
in use.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has been allocating
resources to ensure the Group’s ongoing compliance with the
updated applicable rules and regulations. During the year under
review, the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge,
with the GEM Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant rules and regulations.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group’s success lies also on the support from key
stakeholders, including employees, customers, bankers, service
providers and shareholders.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s
human resources management is to reward and recognise our
employees by providing a competitive remuneration package,
appropriate incentives, and opportunities within the Group for
career advancement.

Customers

The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and asset
growth as well as long term profitability.
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Bankers

To order to ensure adequate market penetration and access, the
Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers
and has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when
necessary.

Service Providers

The Group’s good relationships with its key service providers
are important in provision of effective and efficient services to
our customers and meeting business challenges and regulatory
requirements. The key service providers comprise system
and equipment vendors, external consultants which provide
professional services, and other business partners which provide
value-added services to the Group.

Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate
value to our shareholders. Description of the shareholders’
rights and our investor relations can be found in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 23 to 33 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2015 by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income” of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 10 May 2016 to Thursday, 12 May 2016, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
and voting at the 2016 Annual General Meeting, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at the following address: (with
effect from 5 April 2016: Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong; on
or before 4 April 2016: A18/F., Asia Orient Tower, Town Place,
33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong) for registration by no
later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 9 May 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out
in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” of this report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in the share premium account and retained earnings of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
subject to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2015, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately HK$223 million (2014: HK$177 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers is
approximately 66.3% of the total purchases of the Group and
the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately

22.1%.

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 26.9% of the total sales of the Group and the
largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
16.2%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or their associates (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 2.16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 is disclosed in Note
28 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “GEM Listing Rules”), as
identified below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Shared Services

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 June
2013 (the “Prospectus”), the Company has entered into a shared
services agreement on 18 December 2012 and a supplemental
agreement on 3 June 2013 (together, the “Shared Services
Agreement”) with KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB Holdings”,
together with its subsidiaries which do not belong to the Group,
the “Non-Listed Group”), pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to provide or procure the subsidiaries of the Company to
provide group management, information technology, marketing
and administration support services to the Non-Listed Group
subject to the terms and conditions of the Shared Services
Agreement. The proposed cap amounts of the fees to be
received by the Group under the Shared Services Agreement
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2014, and 31 December 2015 were HK$2,905,000,
HK$3,050,000 and HK$3,203,000 respectively.
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Sharing of Office Premises

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company has entered
into an office licence agreement on 18 December 2012 and
a supplemental agreement dated 3 June 2013 (together, the
“Office Licence Agreement”) with KVB Holdings, pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to provide or procure the
subsidiaries of the Company to provide the sharing of the offices
to the Non-Listed Group subject to the terms and conditions of
the Office Licence Agreement. The proposed cap amounts of
the fees to be received by the Group under the Office Licence
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2014, and ending 31 December 2015
were HK$11.4 million, HK$11.9 million and HK$12.5 million,
respectively.

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015 (the “Announcement”), the Company and KVB
Holdings entered into a renewed Office Licence Agreement (the
“Renewed Office Licence Agreement”) on 18 December 2015 for
a term from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. The annual
caps for the transactions contemplated under the Renewed
Office Licence Agreement for the years ending 31 December
2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are HK$4
million, HK$4.5 million HK$5 million.

Cash Dealing Services

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into cash
dealing agreement on 18 December 2012 and a supplemental
agreement dated 3 June 2013 (together, the “Cash Dealing
Agreement”) with KVB FX Limited (“*KVB FX”), KVB FX Pty Limited
(*KVB FX Pty”) and KVB Kunlun Canada Inc. (*KVB CA”), being
members of the Non-Listed Group. Pursuant to the Cash Dealing
Agreement, KVB NZ has agreed to provide the cash dealing
services to each of KVB FX, KVB FX Pty and KVB CA, subject
to the terms and conditions of the Cash Dealing Agreement.
The proposed cap amounts of the aggregate trading volume
of KVB FX, KVB FX Pty and KVB CA under the Cash Dealing
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December
2013, 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 were US$2.9
billion, US$2.9 billion and US$2.9 billion, respectively.
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 18 December 2015,
KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited (“KVB New Zealand”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and several
subsidiaries (other than the Group) of KVB Holdings entered
into a renewed Cash Dealing Agreement (the “Renewed Cash
Dealing Agreement”) on 18 December 2015 for a term from 1
January 2016 to 30 June 2016, under which KVB New Zealand
shall provide cash dealing services including the provision
of the exchange of currencies and in particular the provision
of currency exchange at a rate determined at the time of the
transaction. The cap for transactions under the Renewed Cash
Dealing Agreement for the six months ending 30 June 2016 is
revenue (net of realised gains, realised losses, unrealised gains
and unrealised losses) of HK$9.9 million.

Information Technology Services

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated
29 January 2014, the Company and Banclogix System Co.,
Limited (“Banclogix”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of KVB
Holdings, entered into an information technology services
agreement (“Information Technology Services Agreement”)
in respect of transaction relating to the provision of software
development and maintenance services, IT infrastructure project
management and maintenance services, and IT risk assessment
services to the Group. The proposed annual caps for the
transactions contemplated under the Information Technology
Services Agreement for each of (i) the period from the date of
agreement on 29 January 2014 to 31 December 2014; and (ii)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 were HK$5,000,000 and
HK$5,500,000, respectively.

Software Licence

As disclosed in the announcement dated 18 December 2015, a
software licence agreement (the “Software Licence Agreement”)
was entered into between the Company and Banclogix on 18
December 2015, pursuant to which Banclogix shall grant the
Company a three-year licence for certain software to enable the
Group to, inter alia, use the routing service and data integration
layer developed by Banclogix. The licence fee payable under
the Software Licence Agreement is a one-off payment of HK$3.5
million.
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All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in this section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above in accordance with Rule 20.38 of the GEM
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of
this report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
Mr. Lin Wenhui

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out in the section of “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Li Zhi Da, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 14 to 22 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers they are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors have entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed under the section “Equity-linked

Agreements” and “Connected Transactions” below, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which any of the Company’s
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time

during the Year or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND

Save as disclosed in the heading “DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES” below, at no time
during the year or at the end of the year has been/was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There has been no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
below, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2015, save as disclosed below, none of
the Directors and chief executive has any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)
which are required to be (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules:

ESRIETHRABRES 2B

RZFE-—RAF+-_A=1T—8 B TIXHEEH
S EEBER R E BITHRABRARE R H A
ZE(ERAEFLBEGRD ([E5RHPE K
f51]) EEXVER) 2Bt - BRI REFTHEAE
()RR RE 75 K IR R DI SEXVER S 7 K2 89 B A A
BARARABRBRT ERIAR (BIERIERE S
KRB GO BREGRE FWEFRRNERER 218
BAMRR)  H(NVARBEARRRREZ S LHE
fFRBIEI62MGFAFE Z B h 2 AR
(i) R IR AR LT AR A5 461K = H5.67 %A
HEARNE R Rz EmSORE -

Nature of shares Number of Shares/ Number of Percentage of
Name of Director interested Underlying Shares held shares interested shareholding
EEps BERGZzROHE FisRe / HERAEE RERGZROHA RERDL
Shares  Options (Note 1)
) B (f7:t1)
Li Zhi Da ( “Mr. Li") Interest in controlled 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.76
(Note 2) corporation
FE ([R5 (Hit2) REEHER 2 B
Liu Stefan Beneficial owner 9,520,000 8,300,000 17,820,000 0.88
e ERfBA
Ng Chee Hung Frederick Beneficial owner 845,000 2,000,000 2,845,000 0.14
RS BRBEAA
Stephen Gregory McCoy Beneficial owner 600,000 1,000,000 1,600,000 0.08
BREAA
Zhao Guixin Beneficial owner 200,000 300,000 500,000 0.02
HER ERBBA
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.01
BREAA
Lin Wenhui Beneficial owner 200,000 300,000 500,000 0.02
M EREBA
Notes: Hiat -
1. These Options were granted on 19 August 2015 under the 1. ZEBBRECR-_FE—RFNNATNARER
Company’s share option scheme. D AIAYRE AR BB AT EIFE M -
2. Mr. Li is interest in 300,000,000 shares through his holdings in 2. I AL EBERKYB Kunlun Holdings Limited

KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (the “KVB Holdings”). As Mr. Li is
entitled to control over one-third of the voting power at general
meetings of KVB Holdings, he is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 300,000,000 shares held by KVB Holdings.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, so far as was known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons had, or
were deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or
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as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Number of
shares/options/
other derivative

Approximate%
of issued

Name of shareholder Capacity interest share capital
37
BaRE
HtifTEfE (EERITRE
RREH g4 A BHABE D
CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Beneficial owner 1,200,310,001 59.04
Company Limited
RS BIMRE AR AT EnEAA
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interested in controlled 1,200,310,001 59.04
(“CITIC Securities™) corporation (Note 1)
REEFRHAERAE ([HEIEF]) REEGEE 2 s (H7E1)
Other (Note 2) 300,000,000 14.76
Bt (Bat2)
KVB Holdings (Note 3) Beneficial owner 300,000,000 14.76
KVB Holdings (##:£3) EREBA
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Note 3) Interested in controlled 300,000,000 14.76
corporation
FEHEESRE (H:23) REZHER 2 i
Calypso (International) Investment Beneficial owner 106,525,000 5.24
Co., Limited (Note 4)
Calypso (International) Investment EnEAA
Co., Limited (#7i4)
HNA Group (International) Company Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.24
Limited (Note 4)
BmER (BK) BRAR (Hit4) REZHER 2 i
HNA Group Co., Ltd. (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.24

BMEBARRE (Hit4)

REZGEE 2 s
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Number of
shares/options/
other derivative

Approximate%
of issued

Name of shareholder Capacity interest share capital
37
BRE
HMifTEEE (EERITRE
BRREE &4 #A BHABESE
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.24
Co., Ltd. (Note 4)
BERERRERRR (Hit4) REEHER 2 #a
Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.24
Co. Ltd. (Note 4)
BEZR CO8) BRRAR (Hit4) REEHER 2 #a
Hainan Province Cihang Foundation (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.24

BHERMASES S (Hit4) REZHEE 2

Notes: Bt -

1. CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Company Limited is 1. P 5B REFRAABPIEAFZEE
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC Securities. By virtue BB A - IRIFZH RS IEH » (5754
of the SFO, CITIC Securities is deemed to be interested in B AR1,200,310,001/8 K2 G115 B #
1,200,310,001 shares of the Company. e

2. On 29 January 2015, KVB Holdings and CITIC Securities entered 2. R-F—BF—H=—+NH KVB Holdings
into a share purchase agreement, pursuant to which, KVB B Z A5G URIDEE 5% - 1R UL - KVB
Holdings conferred to CITIC Securities a right of first refusal on Holdingsflil 7> # {z il 7% 5 £1300,000,0004% 7
300,000,000 shares of the Company. CITIC Securities is thus RARG B EEEERE - Bt - RIFEFRE
deemed to be interested in 300,000,000 shares of the Company B1EG] - #1555 #48 235300,000,000/8 7 2
under the SFO. AR PR o o

3. Mr. Li Zhi Da, a non-executive Director of the Company, was 3. KRAFHTEFEFEESLLEFRITFIKVB
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4. As confirmed by Calypso International Investment Co., Limited,
as at 31 December 2015, Calypso International Investment
Co., Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of HNA Group
(International) Company Limited (/#Mi%E (EIE) HRAF])
(formerly known as HNA Group International Headquarter (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited (M BEIf4E 5 (&%) FR 2 A])), which
was in turn owned as to 91.09% by HNA Group Co., Ltd. (&
MEEBR 2 A]). HNA Group Co., Ltd. was held as to 30% by
Yangpu Jianyun Investment Co., Ltd. (£HZEREHR 22 7]) and
70% by Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. (#@ %
B AR 2\ 7F]). Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd.
was in turn held as to 50% by Shengtang Development (Yangpu)
Co., Ltd. (BEFZEE (G£#) BRZLA]). Shengtang Development
(Yangpu) Co., Ltd. was held as to 65% by Hainan Province
Cihang Foundation (& ZM AmB L 2).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors
are not aware of any other person who has an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares (including interest
in options, if any) of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” above, no contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which any member of the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” above, no contract of significance (including
provision of services) between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2015.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

During the period under review, none of the Directors or their
respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules)
had any business or interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

For the purpose of the listing of the Company, each of KVB
Holdings and Mr. Li, being a non-executive Director, have
entered into a deed of non-competition dated 18 December 2012
and the supplemental deed dated 3 June 2013 (collectively, the
“Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the Company, further
details of which are disclosed in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by KVB Holdings
and Mr. Li during the year under review, and are satisfied that
Deed of Non-competition have been complied with by KVB
Holdings and Mr. Li during the year under review.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 3 June 2013.

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is for the Group to attract,
retain and motivate talented Participants (as defined

below) to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite
the following persons as participants (the “Participants”)
of the Scheme:

(i)

(iii)

any executive or non-executive Director including
any independent non-executive Director or any
employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any
member of the Group;

any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary
or otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business associate of
the Group;

any consultant (in the areas of legal, technical,
financial or corporate management) and other
adviser to any member of the Group;

any provider of goods and/or services to the
Group; or

any other person whom the Board considers, in its
sole discretion, has contributed to the Group.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant,

the Board would take into account such factors as the

Board may at its discretion consider appropriate.
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(c)

(d)

52

Basis for determining the subscription price and
acceptance of offer

The subscription price for the shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Board at its sole discretion and notified to the Participant
and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option is
granted; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date on
which an option is granted; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Share.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer
letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum
in any currency as the Board may determine) by way of
consideration for the grant.

Maximum numbers available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date (the “General Scheme Limit”) unless further
shareholders’ approval is obtained in general meeting,
provided that options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the General Scheme Limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.
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Maximum entitiement of each Participant

For each Participant, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
further to be granted in any 12-month period (including
both exercised and outstanding options) and in the
12-month period up to and including the acceptance
date (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not in isolation or aggregate exceed 1% of
the shares, and any grant of option which would result
in such limit being exceeded shall be approved by the
Company in general meeting with such Participant and
any associate thereof abstaining from voting.

Time of exercise of the option

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during the period commencing on the first business day
from the date of grant of option and expiring at the close
of business on a date to be determined and notified by
the Directors which shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of option.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated
at the time of granting the option, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 3 July 2013 to offer the grant of an option
to any qualifying participants.
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(h) Movements of the options granted under the Scheme

On 19 August 2015, the Company granted share options
to 95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of
40,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company. Among the 40,000,000 share
options granted, 12,200,000 share options were granted
to six Directors.

Details of the movements of the options granted under
the Scheme are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors, chief executive, substantial shareholders
of the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) had any right to subscribe
for the shares of the Company under the Scheme.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There were no major subsequent events since the end of the
reporting year and up to the date of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in the section
headed “Financial summary” of this report.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTEREST

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Quam Capital Limited to be the
compliance adviser. Pursuant to Rule 6A.23 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the compliance adviser will advise the Company in the
following circumstances:

(a) before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

(b) where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction, is contemplated including share
issues and share repurchases;

(c) where the Company proposes to use the proceeds of
the placing in a manner different from that detailed
in the Prospectus or where the business activities,
developments or results of the Company deviate from
any information in the Prospectus; and

(d)  where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the
Company regarding unusual movements in the price or
trading volume of the shares of the Company or any other
matters under Rule 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2015, as notified by Quam Capital Limited,
neither Quam Capital Limited nor any of its directors, employees
or associates (as referred to in Note 3 to Rule 6A.31 of the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in the securities of the Company.

Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement dated 6 June
2013 entered into between the Company and Quam Capital
Limited, Quam Capital Limited has received and shall receive
monthly service fee for acting as the Company’s retained
compliance adviser for the period from 3 July 2013, being the
date of listing of the shares of the Company on GEM, to the date
on which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of its financial results for the second
full financial year commencing after the date of its initial listing.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance practices. A detailed Corporate Governance Report
is set out on pages 23 to 33 of the annual report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$34,630 (2014: HK$33,990).

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.
On behalf of the Board
Liu Stefan

Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

L
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
EmERSREEERARE

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 59 to 151, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016

58

RMEREESE ﬁ%“A%%m%%%#&%
TR - REEA BB TEERE
HERATE U E R AN BRELE TﬁEE
A B AR A BRE

%Eﬁi&%fﬂiﬁuﬁﬂiﬁE%?/m\ﬁﬂ%%&i‘«%ﬁﬁﬁ
RN BEENNETRR - IEENREFIUR
TAAZERED & FI B @ﬁaﬁémﬁ’é,ﬁké’ﬁi%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HRAMBBRRFEERNFERRANER - &E:F
HERRE V?&(Eﬂi%ﬁiﬁiéﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
PENERE P RRAMOA IS - ARTE
EHBREF BENAEEL TW*BT GRS
MUEBRKER - B NERIEEEARAS

BRI EERER S AR - UK
BFRAEMBEHRROEERIIHRTA -
BPEE BAMESHNERREERRTNEE

AT ET T RIRHEER -

=R

BARS  RERAMBRRERBEFBYER
SEAEEMREMBRR SRARREMELQR
R-ZFE-—AF T A=t BB RBE
BEZALFENMBRALRERE Y&

REBAREUED) IRBEREZ BBHE -

B ALACE R A T
GES D
&8 —F-—~E=A+/N\A



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy [B 5 4 fil 4 [ 5 BR /A 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AR R
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-"Z-—A&F+-A=t+—HIEE

2015 2014
—E-EHF —T-mE
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt FTHERT FAT
Leveraged foreign exchange and  1B12 R\ SNE R H M3 Z kA
other trading income ) 343,062 144,207
Cash dealing income BERHWA 5 11,517 16,636
Fee and commission income =3RS AN 48,819 23,686
Other income Hab A 6 3,413 4,105
Total income N L] 406,811 188,634
Fees and commission expenses EARAERAX 120,462 61,127
Staff costs B8 TR AR 7 80,660 36,545
Depreciation and amortisation e L 12& 13 5,401 3,138
Lease payments under land and T RAEFHEERNK
buildings 9,300 6,462
Administrative and B R AL LR
other operating expenses 8 60,836 33,645
Total expenses -t 276,659 140,917
Operating profit a s A 130,152 47,717
Finance cost BhE AR (2,003) (20)
Profit before tax B 0 B A 128,149 47,697
Income tax expense FiS i X 9 (33,440) (12,616)
Profit for the year F = A 94,709 35,081
The notes on pages 66 to 151 form part of these consolidated ~ 5566Z 151 E H) M FE K% Fhr & M IS MK —

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
an =] %ﬁq&ﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE—Z-—A&E+-A=t+—HIEE

2015 2014
—EB-EE —T-F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Mt FER FExT
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEuss
Item that may be reclassified to AEEEM R B s HE
profit or loss
Currency translation difference EHE R =R (11,381) (5,296)
Other comprehensive income FEHEMbEEE (FOBRIEE)
for the year, net of tax (11,381) (5,296)
Total comprehensive income FELHEK=AHE
for the year 83,328 29,785
Earnings per share for profit FEARAIREREA
attributable to the equity holders Bl R A 2 &R EF
of the Company for the year
- Basic (HK cents per share) — EAR (BRRA) 11 4.68 1.75
- Diluted (HK cents per share) —#5E (B 11 4.65 1.75

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form part of these consolidated #66E 151 B M FHEKZE LA M EREN —
financial statements. o o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
A EEARRE

As at 31 December 2015

R-_E—RFE+-_A=+—8H

2015 2014
—E-—RE —E—F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
it THET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB M RE 12 9,397 7,062
Intangible assets A E 13 7,679 5,083
Deferred tax assets RETRIBEE 19 1,893 947
18,969 13,092
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, H b EUFRIE
prepayments and deposits AR FRIE KRS 14 7,064 6,590
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMIA 15 224,859 55,544
Balances due from agents FEUR IR 45 B4 16 41,859 12,099
Cash and bank balances and IRE RIBTES UK
client trust bank balances RPEERRITES 17 776,025 539,185
Total current assets RBEEAE 1,049,807 613,418
Total assets BEEHE 1,068,776 626,510
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRAE
Share capital A&z 22 20,330 20,000
Reserves EE 349,925 342,746
Retained earnings REBEF 95,155 29,977
Total equity A 465,410 392,723
The notes on pages 66 to 151 form part of these consolidated $66E 151 BB T K ZEE M ERRN —

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
maEEAMER

As at 31 December 2015

RZE—RAE+HA=+—H

2015 2014
—Z-HF —T-F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it FHBx FET
Current liabilities RBEE
Finance lease obligations A E A 18 43 41
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS i & fE 13,775 7,358
Other payables and Hih A RIERET BE
accrued liabilities 20 57,363 17,158
Amounts due to other B~ E A BE B 5 5108
related parties 28 73 488
Derivative financial instruments TESmT A 15 3,414 4,662
Clients’ balances KR #EH 21 528,059 203,874
602,727 233,581
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Finance lease obligations A E A 18 19 73
Deferred tax liabilities EERIA B & 19 620 133
639 206
Total liabilities BE8E 603,366 233,787
Total equity and liabilities HEZRERE 1,068,776 626,510

The financial statements on pages 59 to 151 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016 and were signed on
its behalf

Liu Stefan
Bk

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-"Z-—A&F+-A=t+—HIEE

Share  Currency

Share Share Capital option translation Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
&%

kx  hBiteR ErRE REERG EXRE  REEN  HofE
Note  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000

it T TRR TEx - TRR TRR THR

(Note 23)
(Hit23)
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A—H 20,000 166,928 171,892 - 4,883 18,396 382,099
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year EERH - - - - - 35,081 35,081
Other comprehensive income  £E £t 2 ElE
for the year - - - - (5,296) - (5,296)
20000 166928 171,892 - (413) 53477 411884
Share option scheme BRET 2 24 - - - 4,339 - - 4,339
Dividends 8 10 - - - - - (23,500) (23,500)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-A=1+-H
ph oS3 20,000 166,928 171,892 4,339 (413) 29,977 392,723
At1 January 2015 R-2-2%-A-A 20000 16928 11892 439 (@413 297 302728
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year EEEF - - - - - 94,709 94,709
Other comprehensive income ~ EEEf 2 ElE
for the year - - - - (11,381) - (11,381)
20,000 166,928 171,892 4,339 (11,794) 124,686 476,051
Share option scheme BT E 24 - - - 9,902 - - 9,902
Issuance of new ordinary fEERERE T
shares upon exercise of nEAR
share option 330 13,348 - (4,052) - 4,052 13,678
Release of share option HEBRET 2R
reserves upon cancellation  BRMEERIEEE
of share option scheme - - - (638) - 638 -
Dividends Be 10 - - - - - (34.221)  (34.221)

Balance at 31 December 2015 W=Z-Lf+-fA=1+-H
pd 33 20,330 180,276 171,892 9,551 (11,794) 95,155 465,410

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form part of these consolidated 5566 Z 151 E HI I X K% Fhr & M IS MK —
financial statements. #o o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

WA BlaiiiR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BHE-_E—TE+-_A=+—HItEE

2015 2014
—E-EF —ZE—EF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
liogZ3 TET TAET
Cash flows from operating activities Q& EBFEREERE
Profit before tax B 750 Al g A 128,149 47,697
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation and amortisation IE R 12813 5,401 3,138
Interest income FEUA (1,314) (1,811)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & B E & E A s - =
Share option expenses BERRERY 7 9,902 4,339
Cash flows from operating activites %EELEHASLTH
before working capital changes fiBEeRE 142,138 53,363
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BEMEEER (L), R
time deposits (48,517) 2,800
Increase in client trust bank balances — B P{SsEIRITARRIE I (159,031) (25,058)
(Increase)/decrease in balances due  FEURIBAEE (3E10), /B>
from agents (29,760) 4,811
(Increase)/decrease in derivative PfTESBIA (3Bm),/ md
financial instruments (170,563) 3,133
Increase in other receivables, EAEYGRIE - BNFIER
prepayments and deposits BE (513) (1,775)
Decrease in amounts due RN AR IE IR R R B R A
from ultimate holding company - 23
Decrease in amounts due from other JEE st L b B B 5 OB R D
related parties - 75
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due JEf E A RS 7
to other related parties #E i),/ #m (415) 176
Increase in clients’ balances PSS 324,185 34,448
Increase in other payables and EA B I R AT B AN
accrued liabilities 40,205 4,969
Cash generated from operations REmEREe 97,729 76,965
Income tax paid BRI FTEH (26,523) (7,654)
Net cash generated from TETEEMEHE S FE
operating activities 71,206 69,311

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

FE6ETSTAEMM ERK AL FHRA M BEHRERM—
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2 /N 3
FEBemER
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-"Z-—A&F+-A=t+—HIEE

2015 2014
—E-1E —T-mF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 THER TAET
Cash flows from investing activites REZEBFEESRE
Interest received BUFIE 1,353 1,969
Purchase of property, plant and EENE BERIEREVEE
equipment and intangible assets (11,288) (8,756)
Net cash used in investing activities REEDMARSFE (9,935) (6,787)
Cash flows from financing activities B&EZBRERERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares B EITRETIAEE 13,678 -
Repayment of finance lease obligations  {&iE 51 &1 & &Ik (44) (57)
Dividends paid BRE 10 (34,221) (23,500)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBMAREFHE (20,587) (23,557)
Net increase in cash and cash BeRBESEBYEMFE
equivalents 40,684 38,967
Cash and cash equivalents at FRERBREFEYD
beginning of year 343,722 310,675
Effect of foreign exchange rate R E BB EE
changes, net (11,392) (5,920)
Cash and cash equivalents FRELRELEEY
at end of year 17 373,014 343,722

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1

66

CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 November 2010 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading, cash dealing
business, and other services.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 3 July 2013.

On 29 January 2015, KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited, the then controlling shareholder of the
Company, and CITIC Securities Company Limited
(the “CITIC Securities”), a company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China, entered into a
share purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which CITIC Securities
has agreed to acquire 1,200,000,000 shares
of the Company (the “Sale Shares”) from the
controlling shareholder (the “Transaction”). In
accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement,
CITIC Securities has nominated CITIC Securities
Overseas Investment Company Limited (the “CITIC
Securities Overseas”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CITIC Securities which is incorporated in Hong
Kong to purchase the full legal and beneficial
ownership of the Sale Shares.

Subsequent to the completion of the Transaction
on 29 May 2015, CITIC Securities Overseas
holds 1,200,000,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 59.37% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at the
completion date and becomes the immediate
holding company while CITIC Securities becomes
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
1.1 General information (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, 59.04% of the total
issued shares of the Company are held by CITIC
Securities Overseas, 14.76% of issued shares
are held by KVB Kunlun Holding Limited and the
remaining 26.20% of issued shares are listed on
the GEM.

As a consequence of the completion of the
transaction, companies owned by KVB Kunlun
Holdings Limited ceased to be the fellow
subsidiaries. Accordingly, such companies are now
referred to as “other related parties” throughout
these financial statements and underlying notes.

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss, which carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

fok o A 5 A M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following amendments to standards
have been adopted by the group for the first
time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 January 2015:

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs — 2010 — 2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8,
‘Operating segments’, HKAS 16, ‘Property,
plant and equipment’ and HKAS 38,
‘Intangible assets’ and HKAS 24, ‘Related
party disclosures’.

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs — 2011 — 2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 13,
‘Fair value measurement’.

The adoption of the improvements made
in the 2010-2012 Cycle has required
additional disclosures in the segment note.
Other than that, the remaining amendments
has no significant impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are
effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2015 and have not been applied
in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The complete version of HKFRS
9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces
the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to
the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model
and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income and fair value through profit or loss.
The basis of classification depends on the
entity’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset. Investments in equity instruments
are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss with the irrevocable
option at inception to present changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income
not recycling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in
HKAS 39. For financial liabilities there
were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition
of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements
for hedge effectiveness by replacing the
bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It
requires an economic relationship between
the hedged item and hedging instrument
and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same
as the one management actually use for risk
management purposes.
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fok B B 25 R M

2

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (continued)

Contemporaneous documentation is still
required but is different to that currently
prepared under HKAS 39. The standard is
effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption
is permitted. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 9’s full impact.

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognised when
a customer obtains control of a good or
service and thus has the ability to direct the
use and obtain the benefits from the good
or service. The standard replaces HKAS
18 ‘Revenue’ and HKAS 11 ‘Construction
contracts’ and related interpretations.
HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and
earlier application is permitted. The Group
is assessing the impact of HKFRS 15.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a material impact on the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’'s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MWERXE (&)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 &0 (&)

72

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker is the person or group
that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an
entity. The Group has determined the executive
directors and senior management as its chief
operating decision maker.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
consolidated statements  of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or are recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold 10 years or over the
improvements lease term, whichever
is shorter
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. Assets that are subject
to depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life (3 to 5 years) and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in

the following categories: financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss and loans

and receivables. Management determines

the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if it holds
the asset primarily for the purpose of
trading and expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be
settled more than 12 months after
the balance sheet date. These are

classified as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.8  Financial assets (continued) 28 TREE (&)
282 ERARITE

EESTBEME (&)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date -
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are included directly in
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and are reported as “leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading income”
in the period in which they arise. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment if any. The Group’s
receivables (including amounts due from
group companies) and “cash and cash
equivalents” fall under this category.
Accounts receivables and amounts due
from group companies are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
on loans is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and is
reported as net interest income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets (continued)
2.8.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset classified as loans and receivables
is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
observable market data.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

ok B S 5 A M

EESTBEME (&)

2.9

ERMEERE (&)

BIRSBEINEEREERZS R
BERBERMNEXFTENMGBITREK
Heng (TeRREENBRE
EER) RENZEFTE - BEWN
REEHR - MEBBRSBRINEGS
2HRERER - WEREZEBF
- ARFFETARERENITE
KAABAWETEENANAERF
Ko ER—RERAHERER A%
BRI RARHERNMISEENT
AR EREEFERE -

R BERAE - RESBESER
L AR EEM R EREERRE
ERERE (FIanER AEEFF RN
=) 18 - B ERRNREREE
BONGZRE2EKERER -

81



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy [0 4% 4 il 4 [ A BR /A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok B B 25 R M

2

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

The Group classifies derivatives as financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss at inception. These financial assets and
financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
by the Board of Directors.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for
trading are those acquired or incurred principally
for the purposes of selling or repurchasing in
the short term. The Group does not classify any
derivatives as hedges in a hedging relationship.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are recognised in the “leveraged foreign
exchange and other trading income” in the period
in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, bank deposits
with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash and cash equivalents available for the
disposition of the Group and exclude client trust
bank balances, and bank deposits held to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.14

Rental, utility and other deposits

Rental, utility and other deposits held on a long
term basis are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment if any.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the liabilities are due to be settled or
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables
are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred. Financial liabilities
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the other
financial liabilities using the effective interest
method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when
they are extinguished — that is, when the obligation
is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Provision

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that a
future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the
rules of the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in New Zealand, are eligible
to participate in KiwiSaver plan on a
voluntary basis. This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the fund only if employees
are making contribution to KiwiSaver plan.
The contributions are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in Australia, are required
to participate in employee superannuation
fund. This subsidiary is required to
contribute certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the fund. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
fund.

The assets of the Scheme and other plans
as described above are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the Scheme and other
plans.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Employee level entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses, in which the bonus
scheme is at the discretion of the Group’s
Directors based on the Group performance
that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.17 Share-based payment transactions

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined with
reference to the fair value estimated by
external valuer under a valuation model
commonly used in the market.

In valuing equity-settled transactions,
no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the year in which the
service conditions are fulfilled, ending on
the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (the
“vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each balance sheet date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting
year has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a year
represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that year.

When the options are exercised, the
company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly transaction
costs are credited to share capital.

fok o A 5 A M

EESTBEME (&)

217 LRGBZNERES (&)

(a)

BEAERO SRS ()

HEBETRSEERSZ
RATIZERLBREE B
ZRRERE - AAETZR
ZHBAERMRETIS TR
REERGHAAEEE -

G B TS
B B 2 7R AR B 1
# ([0 3% 5 4 1) (i FR)
oh 3T B E R B
o

REFEERXH KA - ERF
BEEEE MY - ERB
RHEESETZFE (RE
ARE2ARESRTZ
REBAB) &R A
R - £5FB B - ZE
HREARRAZESERERS
ZRERX  RRBEBFE
E R EAEEH FK
HemRBEsEa T AMA
REMGF c AERAERSR
AHERER - ITRBRETRE
SR ERERERZE
) o

AR R BB B T i By 3%
THE B o B WA RIA
(FIREMERRHEA)
Tyet AR -

87



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy [0 4% 4 il 4 [ A BR /A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok B B 25 R M

2

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award
are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment arrangement, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

2.18

(b) Share-based payment transaction among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recongised over the vesting periods
an increase to investment in subsidiaries
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a
liability in the consolidated financial statements
in the period in which it is approved by the
shareholders or directors where appropriate.

Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit
of loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
position taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

EESTBEME (&)

2.19 FiiE% (&)

(a)

(b)

RIRpriZ#

ENEIFT S T HIRIB A B
BB A B 58 I B A AR
WARBI RN EE B E R
sk B E M8 B BB OA B A
8 o B E L ERHBAS
REMRRMIE T B
BRI - LEERE
T RIR TR A R I A5 R
SIS OB R AR E B o

EEZFEH
EXFMEHEAAMESL 5
EENRABBENHEERE
ENBERGE B RRD
RHECHAEENERIEE
BT AZHER - BIEMFRF
BB ESE BAC B MK
BEEBEM - WHERRAET
RSB ERRIELTME
MEEAERTERKSER
MR (FOEG]) METE -

EEFTSIREEEN AR
R IR FE AR A5 g A 5 RT PR AR
SHE R Z R R



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy |5 5 4 fil 4 [ 5 BR /A 7]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.20 Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

The financial statements have been prepared so
that expenses/costs are stated inclusive of GST,
where appropriate. The Group is not a registered
person in term of the Goods and Services Tax Act
1985 in New Zealand.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(i) fees and commission income, when the
services have been rendered;

(i) management fees income, when the
services have been rendered; and

(iii) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Cash dealing income

Unleveraged cash dealing services are provided
to corporate clients, in particular, those clients
engaged in money changing business for the
purpose of hedging their cash positions and
meeting settlement obligations. The Group is
rewarded by the spread between the price quoted
to our clients and the price offered by our market
makers. Cash dealing income is recognised when
cash dealing transactions have been completed
by market makers with reference to prevailing
exchange rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor), are charged to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized
at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in finance lease
obligation. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in non-current liabilities.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term.
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B 5 A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and
sound risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and
successful financial practice. The Group acknowledges
that a balance must be achieved between risks, control
and business growth. The principal financial risks inherent
in the Group’s business are credit risk, market risk
(including interest rate risk and foreign currency risk)
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
objective is to enhance shareholder value while retaining
exposure within acceptable thresholds in response
to changes in markets. The Group has a robust risk
management system in place to identify, analyse, assess
and manage risks.

The Group’s risk management is carried out by the Group
Risk Department under policies approved by the Group
audit, risk and compliance committee. The Group Risk
Department provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as mitigating credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, capital management risk and risk limits setting and
monitoring.

The policies for managing each of these risks are
summarised below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from bank balances, balances due
from agents and other receivables and deposits.
After evaluating the client’s risk profiles, the Group
sets stop-out levels to the clients. Once their
equity drops to the stop-out level the Group’s
trading system will automatically liquidate the
client’s positions. Without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying
amounts of these assets. The balances due from
agents have no defaults in the past.

The Group’s bank deposits are held with banks
and balances due from agents are held with major
financial institutions and management reviews the
banks and financial institutions’ creditworthiness on
a regular basis. The banks and financial institutions
are of high credit quality and substantially with
a rating of grade A or with long established
relationships. The credit risk associated with these
balances is deemed insignificant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREE (&)
3.1  Credit risk (continued) 3.1 fEERR (&)

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk (a) FHERFDEEMEEEH
before collateral held or other credit FHREEEREE
enhancements
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit ¥ F A REREEBRET
risk in the event the counterparties fail BEEF - AIASEFEED
to perform their obligations as at the HEHeMEERAN SR
balance sheet date, in relation to each EERBEAGEEEAR
class of financial assets, is the carrying KAMTZEEENERER
amount of those assets as indicated in B ZFeRREAEERT
the consolidated balance sheet. These E-AFERZT—EOFE+=
amounts represent the worst case scenario A=+—HFEBHNEER
of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 BHsE=BER - BRiTRE
December 2015 and 2014, without taking A T REHE 1R o S P B Eo At (5
into account any collateral held or other ERABEMR -
credit enhancements attached.

The carrying values of receivables and other MAEB X BEREED

assets arising from the course of business JEWRIE R H A B ERREE
of the Group are as follows: /(1N

2015 2014

—F-AHF —F—MmF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FER FAET

Other receivables and deposits  H{th EUFIE RikE 5,331 5,269

Derivative financial instruments {74 4&mT A 224,859 55,544

Balances due from agents FEUR IR 484 41,859 12,099

Cash and bank balances and & RI/ITHEBRIAR
client trust bank balances P ERRITES 776,025 539,185
1,048,074 612,097
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(c)

3

ok B S 5 A M

BERRERE (&)
3.1 &Rk (&)

None of the financial assets is either past () WESREEDHNRE -
due or impaired.
The following table breaks down the Group’s (c) TERUREEMASAEED
major credit exposure at their carrying FEEERE  WRHE—
amounts, as categorised by geographical E—hHERZFT—NFE+
region as of 31 December 2015 and 2014. “A=1+—HH IR ES
The Group has allocated exposures to DR AEERBEHFH
regions based on the country of domicile of BIFTIE B R » Bl Bk 2 & 4
its counterparties. Credit risk exposure by E - ZEEHEASNEERR
geographical sectors is classified according et REERREIEEFR
to the location of counterparties after taking FrfEth T LA 48 o
into account the transfer of risk.
As at 31 December 2015 R-E2—RFE+=-B=+—H
Asia
Pacific Europe
Hong excluding and other
Kong  Hong Kong regions Total
TAHE Bk
£ (TREER) HthE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Fin Fin Tin
Other receivables and deposits EtEbER RS 3,022 2,309 - 5,331
Derivative financial instruments TEeRIA - 224,859 - 224,859
Balances due from agents FURRE SR - 41,859 - 41,859
Cash and bank balances and B RETEHAR
client trust bank balances BFERBTRS 260,039 379,746 136,240 776,025
Total act 263,061 648,773 136,240 1,048,074
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e BA B R AR M R
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERRER (&)
3.1  Credit risk (continued) 3.1 fEERAR (&)
(c) (continued) (c) (&)
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—WFE+=A=+—8H
Asia
Pacific Europe
Hong excluding and other
Kong  Hong Kong regions Total
TAME BN R
7B (TRERS) EitE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL
Other receivables and deposits EthRWGE R RS 2713 2,556 = 5,269
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA - 55,544 - 55,544
Balances due from agents ElRELES - 12,099 - 12,009
Cash and bank balances and RERFETEBUR
client trust bank balances EPEARTEH 244,815 227,890 66,480 539,185
Total @t 247,528 298,089 66,480 612,097
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Market risk

3.2.1 Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk
as the Group invests all surplus funds
in call accounts with reputable banks
and is susceptible to movements in call
interest rates. Interest rate risk arises
from unexpected changes in interest
rates that may result in an adverse impact
on the Group’s current and near future
performance. The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps nor forward interest rate
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

As at 31 December 2015

3
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BERRERE (&)
3.2 THiEER
3.2.1 FAZXEMRE

HRASERABERRES
BREREERFRITHEA
R Pt 48 RN 1F RN R ED
VRE MAKERENEX
Rk o M RERRRE MR
BINKE) - HEBHEB AL
B ERE SOOI RRBEED
MEE - AEEIWRNBE
ERESEE g =y
EmE N RER

R-ZE—-HF+=-A=1+—H

Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FEAE  EEMNE ®E @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x Ti#x Ti#x T#x
Assets &E
Other receivables and deposits ~ EfEMNFIE KikE - - 5,331 5,331
Derivative financial instruments #7144 @ T A - - 224,859 224,859
Balances due from agents JEURA I8 A 5 4,756 - 37,103 41,859
Cash and bank balances and Be RFITHEHUK
client trust bank balances EPERRTER 673,628 89,318 13,079 776,025
Liabilities &
Finance lease obligation BEREAE - 62 - 62
Other payables H AR 508 - - 22,990 22,990

Amounts dug to other JE E BB 5 308
related parties

TEERIA

BP &

Derivative financial instruments
Clients’ balances

- 73 73
- 3,414 3,414
- 528,059 528,059
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERRER (&)
3.2  Market risk (continued) 3.2 THiBER (&)
3.2.1 Interest rate risk (continued) 3.2.1 FEEE (&)
As at 31 December 2014 REZZE—NF+=—A=+—8H
Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FRAE  EEA %8 it

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TR TR

Assets BE
Other receivables and deposits  E fth e U8 Rk s - = 5,269 5,269
Derivative financial instruments 744 /T A - - 55,544 55,544
Balances due from agents KB 1,754 - 10,345 12,099
Cash and bank balances and 34 RIRITHEHUK

client trust bank balances REERTER 438,613 92,094 8,478 539,185
Liabilities aff
Finance lease obligation REHERE - 114 - 114
Other payables HH R ZE - ~ 14253 14,253
Amounts due to other JE < Lt BB 7 7B

related parties - - 488 488
Derivative financial instruments T4 ¢@ITA = = 4,662 4,662
Clients’ balances RP&eh = - 203874 203,874
Based on the simulations performed and IR IRAS R R BR i B fh °] &
with other variables held constant, should ERFIETE - WA X
the interest rate increase/decrease by Re/ THKi1%  AEZE=
1%, the profit after taxation for the year T—RAE+-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2015 would increase/ IEF /R E & A
decrease by approximately HK$6,783,000 hn 4> 496,783,00058 7T
(2014: HK$4,404,000) and the equity ZE U4 : 4,404,000/
would increase/decrease by approximately TL) RGN R A4
HK$6,783,000 (2014: HK$4,404,000). 6,783,000 T (ZZF — I

£ 1 4,404,000/&7T) °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Market risk (continued)

3.2.2 Foreign currency risk

Exchange rate fluctuation is the most
significant risk in leveraged foreign
exchange trading. The Group takes on
exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to New Zealand
dollars and Australian dollars. The Group will
suffer a loss if it fails to cover a client deal at
a better exchange rate. The Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure by reviewing
the open position of the Group and client
trading performance. The risk is measured
by the use of sensitivity analysis and cash
flow forecasting. Specific risk limits are set
to measure and monitor foreign exchange
risk. Any excessive foreign exchange risks
are passed on to other financial institutions
through execution of trades with those
institutions. The management sets limits on
the level of exposure by currency and in
aggregate for both overnight and intra-day
positions, which are monitored on an
intra-day basis.

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations, whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency policy to hedge its currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group'’s foreign operations.

3
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102

3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBERER (&)
Market risk (continued) 3.2 TiBEAR (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 SHERE (&)
The tables below summarise the Group’s TREAAEENR - —h
exposure to foreign currency exchange FRZE—NFF+ZA=+
rate risk as at 31 December 2015 and —HHEBAIMNERL - T&
2014. Included in the tables are the assets MA LA T EEREES R
and liabilities at carrying amounts in HK$ TIRREEDBENEERE
equivalent, categorised by the original & o
currency.
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF+-A=+—H
HK$ NZD AUD UsD JPY RMB  Others Total
B AERR An Ey7 RE AR% 2 @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEn T TEr TEr TEx TR TR TEn
Assets BE
Other receivables and deposits  EtEWNZERE4 2,952 20 60 259 - 2,040 - 5331
Derivative financial instruments  $74£4#TA - 23367 10,584 190,423 485 - - 224,859
Balances due from agents R B 501 1,651 470 36,868 1,855 16 498 41,859
Cash and bank balances and ~ B& RFITEHRUR
client trust bank balances REETRTLEL 46973 27,207 49,549 639,060 3,909 9,248 70 776,025
Liabilities g
Finance lease obligation REREAR - - 62 - - - - 62
Other payables HthERZE 6,024 115 1,755 13502 - 553 - 2299
Amounts due to other EREbER LB
related parties - - - 73 - - - 73
Derivative financial instruments #7428 I A - 446 2 2946 - - - 3414
Clients' balances RE&H - 16336 39,839 470,239 1,645 - - 528,059
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERRER (&)
3.2  Market risk (continued) 3.2 THiBER (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 SEREE (&)
As at 31 December 2014 N-E—MNE+=-—B=1+—H
HKS NZD  AUD UsD Y  RMB  Others  Total
Br AFEET AT eI HE ARE ) it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TRt Thr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
Assets EE

Other receivables and deposits  EfENGERES 2,708 3 530 43 - 1,953 - 5269
Derivative financial instruments  fT4 2RI E - 17280 11307 26,553 - - 454 55544
Balances due from agents o 31 33 5% 10,380 570 - 549 12,099

Cash and bank balances and ~ B&RFFTELIR
client trust bank balances RRERRTES 125929 30812 54552 309400 2657 14488 1347 539,185

Liabilities 8f

Finance lease obligation HERERE - - 114 - - - = 114
Other payables TR 4,39 91 1366 7,500 = - - 14253

Amounts due to other gty
related parties - - - 488 - - - 488
Derivative financial instruments  $T4A£BTA - 1460 753 2449 - - - 4662
Clients" balances RPish - 10686 40224 152,831 133 - - 203874
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBEREE (&)
3.2  Market risk (continued) 3.2 TmWiERR (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 SEREE (&)
The following table indicates the impact TRINTEREN IR
of management’s reasonable expectation HZE-—RAFR=ZF—EF
on the movement in foreign exchange +ZA=t+—BAREEKRH
rate on the Group’s profit after taxation 1% 74 1) R HE 2 ) 1N BEE E 2R R
and on equity as at 31 December 2015 FHE
and 2014:
Movement Movement
in foreign in foreign
currency 2015 currency 2014
Foreign currency risk S EE HERE —EB-—RE INERE) —ZT—PUE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
AUD SBIT +/-8% +/-1,519 +/-5% +/-1,223
JPY H +/-3% +/-138 +/-5% +/-155
NZD TR +/-10%  +/-3,430 +/-5% +/-1,749
RMB AR +/-5% +/-538 +/-6% +/-822
3.3 Liquidity risk 3.3 RBHEER
The Group’s operations are subject to various ARBNEBEXBRBRERENS
statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed BEATRBESZRME - XRE
ERVEERS  BREFTHEN

by the relevant authorities. The Group has put
in place a monitoring system to ensure that it
maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its
business commitments and to comply with the
regulatory requirements. The liquidity risk of
the Group is managed by regularly monitoring
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and current working capital to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. The Group holds sufficient cash and
deposits on demand to repay its liabilities.

MBES RARBE MR AERM
B RETERER  AKEE
BEMEZANLBERRDESE
KERERBIERR  BEANEE
HBRANBRSRHERENEESR
EAMEEEHEERARDESE
Ko AEERARRNAS FEH
FREELEE-
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MEREBRERE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 #EBHERR (£)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 BEXNIHHEZH KB
maturities BE2nE
The table below presents the cash flows TREINAEBR=_FT—F
payable by the Group under financial FR-_ZF—NFE+=-A=+
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities —HEHTEAIHERE
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. The BEEETHWEMNE SR
amounts disclosed in the table are the B o RZAEENSEAS
contractual undiscounted cash flows. HREERESRE ©
As at 31 December 2015 R=-EB—-HF+=-A=+—H
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1month  months  months Years  5years Indefinite Total
-2 =%
-@AR =@ {-fA -Eif @Ef  ERE st
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén T TEn TEx TR TExn  TEn
Liabilities g
Finance lease obligation HERERE 4 8 53 - - - 65
Other payables HthERZE 21,03 16 1,951 - - - 2200
Amount due to other T EmER R
related parties 73 - - - - - 73
Clients' balances XPER 528,059 - - - - - 528,059
549,159 U 200 - - - 5
Derivative financial instruments 744 8T A 3414 - - - - - 3414
552,573 24 2,004 - - - 554,601
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBERER (&)
3.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 HEHERAR (&)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 BEXNIHHEZH KB
maturities (continued) BLmE (&)
As at 31 December 2014 N_E—FE+—A=1+—~H
Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Qver
Tmonth  months months Years  Syears Indefinite Total
-z =2
AR =@R TZ@A -2nf  BEE  ERH it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§'000
Tér  ThEr  ThEn Thr TR TAxr  TEx
Liabilities g
Finance lease obligation RERSAR 4 9 34 73 - - 120
Other payables A ERFE 11759 1,020 1474 - = - 14253
Amount due to other EfEMER 7
related parties 488 - - - - - 488
Clients’ balances ER&R 203,874 - - - - - 203874
216,125 1,029 1,508 73 - - 21873%
Derivative financial instruments 474 2@ T A 4,662 - - - - - 4,662
220,787 1,029 1,508 73 - - 223397
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The following table represents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured
at fair value at the balance sheet date
across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
price in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.

3

ok B S 5 A M

BHERER (&)

3.4

tREEREEBENAAE
3.4.1 BARBFIENZHTA

TREJNEER - BEY
BREENETR ISR T
H:BEIMRENAAE
FRFEN=EFRP - A
NREMAENSBTANK
HE BEREBIANLIA
EREBEZFAKENEER
REFEREERETENERIE
THRE - EHSETED
T

F1R (ZRER) - NBE
ARG TR RE CREH

%) HERRME -

oM RAEESRA
BHmEEUSR T AR
B - KRB HERMEE
HEHEZN2HERNL
RERBERABRETHH
&

FEIR (REFR) : 2AE
ERMGERME  ERE
ZH2HH T RRR A BE
mIHERE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)

As at 31 December 2015

3

BEmBER (&)
3.4 SRMEERABHNAAME (F)

341 BAABENZHBTA

(%)

R-2-A%+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
14 PR ERE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TART TERT TERT TERT
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4£ 4@ T A - 224,859 - 224,859
Liabilities af
Derivative financial instruments #7144 @ T A - 3,414 - 3,414
As at 31 December 2014 N-ZE—FE+_A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R FoM £33 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FTExT TExT FTExT
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments #1448 T E = 55,544 = 55,544
Liabilities a8
Derivative financial instruments 144 @ T E - 4,662 - 4,662

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

YN EEMSEE 2SR
TR EARERAMGBER
METE - ZE[ERMED
AR SRR BEM S
& - WA R TR R B
EfhEr o WA A EE—
HTAMBNEHEESH
BRI BRES - AIZAETA
SN AF2R
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)
3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair

3.4.2

value (continued)

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period, with the resulting value discounted
back to present value.

There have been no significant transfers
between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the fair
value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value are
not materially different from their carrying
amounts due to their short maturities.

Balances due from agents and other
receivables include the contractual amounts
for settlement of trades and other obligations
due to the Group.

Clients’ balances represent the margin
deposits received from clients and the
unrealised profit or loss from their trading
activities under normal course of business.
Their carrying values are a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

fok o A 5 A M

3 HRERRER (&)

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

ERMEERBBENANE (B)

BAAETENZHTA
(%)

EHIIMER WO R ERH
SHRMEREREE - 7
EEMEEKMBATER
-

REE-_ZT—AFR=_ZT—
mE+=-—BA=+—HIF
B B B2l R FEIR
BT E R E o

TEAAENEBHEHBEE
REE

RZE—RAFR=_FT—EOF
+T-A=1+—8 ARA%E
EWIEEARBEFENSH
BEERABEMNIBHERE -
WMEARBEEAEEREBETE
EAER o

R M 322 A ik e EL A B KUK
HERENARENBRE
NRZHNEHOFBEREME
£

BEPESBERETSEKBE
U P R EE 2 17 5K R
MEETEERDHARER
mAHER - lREEREAQ
RERE -

109



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED i [ [ 4 fil 4 [ 45 BR /A =)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok B B 25 R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREE (&)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 2WMEEREENAARE (&)
(continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HHtHEERHERE
liabilities
(a)  Financial assets (a) ZHEE
The following financial assets are LTERMEERXK
subject to offsetting, enforceable 8 - AIGRBIENTTAT —
master netting arrangements and R R T HE A
similar agreements. hEMRR °
As at 31 December 2015 R=-Z—HF+=H
ST
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
TRREERER
EHENRBRE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
financial financial
Gross liabilities assets
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet  Instruments received Amount
REE
BRRNEE HERERA
BB ERZeH Fr2 519 ghns

TREELE  AFAER SREEFE  2RIR igils B
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
TAR Thn TR Tin Thn ThR

Derivative financial {4 2BIE
instruments 448,983 (224,124) 224,859 - - 224,859

Total 3t 448,983 (224,124) 224,859 - - 224,859
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(continued)

(a)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERRER (&)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 3.4 LREEREENAAE (E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (#&)
Financial assets (continued) (a) =ZzHEE (&)
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—Wm&+=-A
=t+-—H
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
TARNEESER
B
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities assets
amounts of set off presented
recognised in the inthe Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet  Instruments received Amount
BERNEE AEBERR
BRIEE EREAcR FrZ314) BhRe
BEGE BEEE SREETE SR it i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL A AL Thr T
Derivative financial 744 BIE
instruments 63,881 (8,337) 55,544 - - 55,544
Total gt 63,881 (8,337) 55,544 = = 55,544
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREE (&)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 2WMEEREENAARE (&)
(continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (&)
(b)  Financial liabilities (b) ZHEE
The following financial liabilities are LTe@aExXE
subject to offsetting, enforceable 8 - AIGRBIENTTAT —
master netting arrangements and R R T HE A
similar agreements. hEMRR °
As at 31 December 2015 R-—EB-HF+=A
ST
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
PRNEEEER
ERvRETE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities liabilities
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  Instruments pledged Amount
REE
BERAEE HERERA
ISR ERALH e BER

AEAE  ARNE SHAEFE  SRIR  ReERR B
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR Tin Tin ThR ThR ThR

Derivative financial ~ §i54BIE
instruments (229,430) 226,016 (3,414) - - (3,414)

Total it (229,430) 226,016 (3,414) - - (3,414)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4
(continued)

(b)

ok B S 5 A M

3 HRERRER (&)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 2WMEEREENAARE (&)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (&)
Financial liabilities (continued) (b) ZHEE (&)
As at 31 December 2014 RZZTE—NFE+=H
=t+-—H
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
TRNEERRR
i ol b
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities liabilities
amounts of set off presented
recognised in the inthe Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  Instruments pledged Amount
BEFAEH AEARRA
ERASE  CEAeR i1l BB
BfEfeE GRS SHARRE SHIE  Hein L
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Thr TR AR TExL
Derivative financial 744 RTE
instruments (9,576) 4914 (4,662) - - (4,662)
Total gt (9,576) 4914 (4,662) = = (4,662)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

(b)

Financial liabilities (continued)

For the financial assets and liabilities
subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar arrangements
above, each agreement between the
Group and the counterparty allows
for net settlement of the relevant
financial assets and liabilities when
both elect to settle on a net basis.
In the absence of such an election,
financial assets and liabilities will be
settled on a gross basis, however,
each party to the master netting
agreement or similar agreement will
have the option to settle all such
amounts on a net basis in the event
of default of the other party. Per the
terms of each agreement, an event
of default includes failure by a party
to make payment when due; failure
by a party to perform any obligation
required by the agreement (other
than payment) if such failure is not
remedied within 30 days after notice
of such failure is given to the party;
or bankruptcy.

3 HRERRER (&)

3.4 SRMEERABHNAAME (F)

343 HFEzHMEERTHER

(%)

(b)

EHEE (&)
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FREEP AT HE SRR
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ERWMHEETEE
BERERGEE
AP REE R
BEERAR - £2
BIEHZEZNBR
TrEMEERA
ERSREREES
8 BE-BFREE+
BipE KB G ER
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— I REEERE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5

3.6

Financial instruments by category

All the financial assets and financial liabilities
(including cash and bank balances, client trust
bank balances, balance due from/to agents,
other receivables, amounts due to other related
parties, client balances, balances due to banks,
other payables and finance lease obligation)
in the consolidated balance sheet are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method as “loans and receivables” and “other
financial liabilities at amortised cost” except for
the derivative financial instruments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are
carried at fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital,
which is a broader concept than the “equity” on
the face of balance sheet, are:
o To comply with the liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong,
Investments
Commission in and the
Securities Commission in New Zealand

Australian Securities and
Australia

for its subsidiaries which are licensed
corporations;

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of its business.

fok o A 5 A M

3 MRERER (&)

3.5

3.6

BOBENESHMTA
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TRIBAERR - B RUIR - BN
HAEARE 5 3R - BE&RR - B
RITHEER - RN RA KRB A
BAME) RBHAAABRN TR
ARSI TER R EWRIE] & [
BEAAGHENHEMCERAR]
HEARABEARNITESR T AN
BAREFABENEREER
o e

BEXxERE
FEEER (BRREERERN

Em| EAEMR) EENBEER.
2

. LB R OEE B AR M
5 NeEEERSFMAIES
BERZEE  RIMNARN
EFEREEELZBE R
AMESZBENRDES
MIE

. RERAEENFEL L8
N NHEBERRR R EAMH
A ERE R EF R

. XREAEENRERER
K

0 RSB EARER - A
REXBER -

115



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & iy |5 /6% 4 Fil 4 [ A BR /2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 285 e Fi

ey

3

116

3.6

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MEEREE (&)
Capital management (continued) 3.6 EBXEE®E (&)
The Group’s gearing ratio at the balance sheet AEEREEBNEELENT ¢
date is shown below:
2015 2014
—E-RF —HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Total debt (e TGS 135 602
Total equity HERAE 465,410 392,723
Gearing ratio A& = 0.03% 0.15%
Total debt includes finance lease obligation and & BREREMEEAEREN
amounts due to other related parties. /H‘r&ﬁﬁ Tv?ﬁ’\lﬁ o
All licensed corporations within the Group complied REBEE_T—RFR_T—NFIL
with their required liquid capital during the years FE  ASENMEREEEEE
ended 2015 and 2014, TERBESHRTE °
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BEES AT RAE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and

are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the

related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year

are addressed below.

FFRAEEREFG  AABEERK
HREAER  BEEREBITHE
HREEMHNAEES -

41 EEEiHAETTRER
AEEGHARRED G RERE -

Rt ELE 2§t BRAR D B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(a) Fair value of share options

The Group determines the fair value of
share options at the date at which they
are granted with reference to the fair value
estimated under a valuation model which
are commonly used in the market. The
assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are subject to
managements’ best estimation. Changes in
assumptions about these assumptions could
affect reported fair value of share options.
Managements use their judgment to make
assumptions that are mainly reference to
the historical data of comparable listed
companies.

More details of the assumptions made are
included in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Management of the Group has not made any
significant critical judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies.

4
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B 255 A ik

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the executive
directors and senior management of the Group. The
Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the services they provide. Each of the
Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers services which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of the other
business segments. The Board of Directors considers the
business from a geographical and product perspective.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the margin dealing segments engage in the
provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading services in Hong Kong and New Zealand;

(b)  the unleveraged cash dealing segment engages in
the provision of non-leveraged foreign exchange
trading services in New Zealand. Unleveraged
cash dealing services were provided to corporate
clients, in particular, those clients engaged in
money changing business for the purpose
of hedging their cash positions and meeting
settlement obligations. The Group is rewarded by
the spread between the price quoted to our clients
and the price offered by our market makers; and

(c) the investment sales segments engage in provision
of sales and marketing functions to clients in New
Zealand and Australia.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with
reference to the prices charged to third parties and there
was no change in the basis during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The segment information provided to the management
for the reportable segments for the years ended 31

December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2015

ok B S 5 A M

DEERE (&)

HE-T-AFR-F -WE+-A=+
— B - SIS S BRERER
15 HERMT :

BE_ZE—HF+-A=+—HLEEE

New New New
Zealand  Hong Kong Zealand Zealand  Australia
Margin Margin Cash Investment Investment
dealing dealing dealing sales sales Unallocated Elimination Total
LG B G| LG 2N
REERE REERE  RERR  REHE  REME AR 3 @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TEr ThT TR TER T TR TER
Segment revenue and ABREREMBA -
other income:
Foreign exchange and other  RESNIRPRIINE R
trading income earned from R SUA
external customers 342,917 145 11,517 - - - - 354,579
Inter-segment sales HEHEE - 118979 - 27,628 22,781 - (169,388) -
Segment revenue GaELeey 342,917 119,124 11,517 21,628 22,781 - (169,388) 354,579
Fee and commission income B RASMA 47,413 - - - - 1,406 - 48,819
Other income HftlA 2,21 - 106 - 152 934 - 3,13
Total revenue and other WEREmRAEE
income 392,551 119,124 11,623 21,628 22,933 2,340 (169,388) 406,811
Segment profit bR 80,403 109,341 11,078 12,740 18,968 2,340 234,870
Other staff costs EHETAHAR (36,447)
Other unallocated ERAEAHR
administrative and BERR
operating expenses (70,274)
Profit before tax BREER 128,149
Income tax expense FERES (33,440)
Profit for the year EEaf 94,709
Other segment information: ~ Eft5 S&# -
Depreciation and amortisation #7% Jr 2 - 194 - - - 5,207 5,401
Finance cost RENA 1,913 - - - - 90 2,003

119



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED i [ [ 4 fil 4 [ 45 BR /A =)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok B B 25 R M

5

120

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 PEHE (2)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
New New New
Zealand  Hong Kong Zealand Zealand Australia
Margin Margin Cash  Investment  Investment
dealing dealing dealing sales sales  Unallocated  Elimination Total
AT Bk i ATl =
FER5 REERS  BERS  REBE  REME AR b @t
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
ThI Thr i ThI T Th Th T
Segment revenue and ARG REMNA -
other income:
Foreign exchange and other  RESNMSERSHNER
trading income earned from  EfRFHA
external customers 144,214 (7) 16,636 - - - - 160,843
Inter-segment sales HREHE = 45,657 = 6,687 16,311 - (68,655) -
Segment revenue PG 144,214 45,650 16,636 6,687 16,311 - (68,655) 160,843
Fee and commission income BERF2MA 21,057 - - - 153 2476 - 23,686
Other income A 180 - 46 55 153 3,671 = 4,105
Totel revenue and other  MEREMUAEE
income 165,451 45,650 16,682 6,742 16,617 6,147 (68,655) 188,634
Segment profitoss) ARER/ (BR) 30,295 38,914 15,516 (1575) 11824 6,147 101,121
Other staff costs EfEINA (19,552)
Other unallocated ERRARTHR
administrative and BERx
operating expenses (33,872)
Profit before tax CSiThagil 47,697
Income tax expense FERAR (12,616)
Prolfit for the year EERH 35,081
Other segment information: ~ Eft A ZER: :
Depreciation and amortisation 7% &3 115 264 57 161 133 2,408 3,138
Finance cost HERA 18 - - - 2 - 20
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The entire

Group’s income from external customers
its operations in New Zealand.

5 oM®mE (E)

is derived from

ARRBENES - AEERBINGEEFH
WA E ER AR R R & 5

2015 2014
—E-EHF —TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT THET

New Zealand 4P RS 354,434 160,850
Others Eth 145 (7)
354,579 160,843

The locations of its non-current assets (excluding

HIRBDEE (TEEEERAEE) O

deferred tax assets) are as follows: AT
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHIT
Hong Kong BB 6,395 3,651
New Zealand ol 7,836 6,064
Australia BN 2,845 2,430
17,076 12,145

None of the external customers contributes more than
10% of the Group’s trading income individually in the

respective years.

Information on segment assets and liabilities are not
disclosed as this information is not presented to the
Board of Directors as they do not assess performance

AHI10% A E o

BEIMEFERBRSFEARERS K

HRESSUEFEREHUEERRENE
M b RE D RORE - WEBERYL
BERTEZS AMUEBREABESG

of reportable segments using information on assets and BERBENER -
liabilities.
OTHER INCOME 6 Hglr A
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FA&T
Provision of management services REEERY (H:728(a)(i))

(Note 28(a)(i)) 1,256 2,019
Interest income FE WA 1,314 1,811
Exchange (losses)/gain, net EH (E518),/ W - F8 (1,324) 22
Handling fee rebate FEZ D 1,891 -
Others Hih 276 253

3,413 4,105
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7 STAFF COSTS 7 BI A
2015 2014
—E—EF —T—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Staff costs (including directors’ SEIRAKA (BIEESHE
remuneration (Note 26)): (B1:z26)) :
Salaries, bonus and allowances T& - TEAT R ERL 69,469 31,300
Pension scheme contributions RIS TR 1,289 906
Staff option expenses (Note 24) B TERERS (#it24) 9,902 4,339
80,660 36,545
8 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING 8 THRHEMEERX
EXPENSES
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Management fees paid to the then YT EREEEIERA TN
immediate holding company BIRE (MiE28(a)(ii)
(Note 28(a)(ii)) 983 799
Management fees paid to other related x5 5 H #b BaBE 7 59
parties (Note 28(a)(ii)) EIRB (K1:F28(a)(ii) - 361
Other office occupation expenses HEh=mr AR 2,216 1,619
Auditor’s remuneration IZE BB &
— Audit services EZ RS 2,931 2,355
— Non-audit services HEZ RS 252 293
Information services expenses BB 4,584 3,024
Professional and consultancy fee EE NIRRT 5,334 8,656
Repair and maintenance HEREE (BERRES)
(including system maintenance) 9,138 1,819
Marketing, advertising and MEHRE  BEEREERX
promotion expenses 14,140 7,807
Handling fee expenses FEERX 7,005 -
Travelling expenses ZEIRE 3,650 2,892
Entertainment expenses TR FE BN 2,651 1,089
Insurance fRBR 705 653
Clients’ debit balances written off B P B AL S SR M 2,388 13
Others At 4,859 2,265
60,836 33,645

122



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy |5 5 4 fil 4 [ 5 BR /A ]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok o B S A M

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profit during the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit during the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates. The income tax expenses of the Group are

9  FBHAX

B AR ST IR E RA G T FE R B F A
16.5% BBt KEHR B - BINEFIMFLIE
ERAFEGHTERFEFNUAASELE
FIEBRBITHRESE - BREZHHH
R - AN E AT KORIMN B PT S R
S5 Bl 28% K 30% K FL REHE -

charged at a tax rate of 28% in New Zealand and 30%
in Australia in accordance with the local tax authorities.

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T
Current tax: BIHARGIE :
Charge for the year FRZH 33,951 12,947
Over-provision in prior year EEFBRBRE (155) (20)
Others Hith 225 301
Deferred tax: ERERLIE
Credit for the year (Note 19) FANETA (B17E19) (581) (612)
Income tax expense PSRt 2 33,440 12,616
2015 2014
—E—-HF —Z—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT

Profit before income tax B P45 30 A& A 128,149 47,697
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate 12EBETH R ERNTIE 21,145 7,870
Effect of different taxation rates HEMBERTERENTE

in other countries 9,396 3,464
Income not subject to tax R SN (828) (16,164)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARIF A 1,630 16,243
Temporary differences not recognised  RIER LR E=5E 2,135 1,217
Utilization of previously ) A SR AR FER MR IS 1B

unrecognized tax losses (246) (295)
Over-provision in prior year EF BB (155) (20)
Others Eitb 363 301
Income tax expense FriSFiF X2 33,440 12,616
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10

11

124

DIVIDENDS

On 10 November 2014, the Board approved the payment
of an interim dividend of HKO0.675 cents per ordinary
share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$13,500,000.
The payment was made to the shareholders of the
Company on 26 November 2014.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 of HK1.075 cents per ordinary share, amounting to
a total dividend of approximately HK$21,729,000 was
recommended by the Directors at the meeting of the
Board of directors held on 31 March 2015. The final
dividend was approved by the Company’s shareholders
at its annual general meeting held on 5 May 2015 and
was paid to the then shareholders on 21 May 2015.

On 6 May 2015, the Board has approved the payment of
an interim dividend of HK0.618 cents per ordinary share.
A total of approximately HK$12,492,000 was paid to the
shareholders on 1 June 2015.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

10

11

RE

R-Z—WF+—A+H EBFSHHER
&R B I0.675 8 (LM AR HARR B - A%
B 485 513,500,000/8 7T - ARARIER =
T—NFE+—A=+NBRARARBRES
ERE °

BEN_E—RF=-A=+—BEHNE
EeeRLLERRNEBEE_E—NF+=
A=+—BLEFENREREER LA
B&1.0757% 1l (42 f% B £k 4921,729,000/%5
L) e REIREBEEEARARGER=ZTE—AF
hARBERMBRRAEF RS FESBRKRR
HE YER-_E—RFAA-T—HX
NFERARRE -

R-Z—AFAANA  EFSHERN
FAEEBAX0.618F Il A A HARR B - 488k
#912,492, 0008 TER =T —HF/~H—
B fFRE -

ErefEEMaE—_E—H&E+=-A=
+—BEFEERET MRS

BRER

(a) BRELXER

BERERNBNRANRRBERE A
RERFRARAEREDRITER
BE I BT o

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit attributable to equity RAFRERB ARG RT
holders of the Company 94,709 35,081

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

No. of shares

B8 B

No. of shares

g =]

B 31T E BAH IR T 8

2,022,362,301 2,000,000,000

Basic earnings per share
(HK cents)

FRERRN &)

4.68 1.75
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares under the share option scheme
into ordinary shares.

11

fok o B S A M

BRER (&)
(b) EBRBERR

SREERNDRBEFALRFK
BBA ARGRNE - BEHE
ERBRINETFARSFAZDET
EAEREA - N ERRERIEER
AT B BIT R B R A A
BYENBELTAR AT BRMm A
WHREERTH T BRINEFSE -

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—uF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTET
Profit attributable to equity R B RERFE AL R
holders of the Company 94,709 35,081

No. of shares
&g E

No. of shares

RADEE

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

Adjustments for share options

Adjustments for share options
converted, lapsed and
cancelled in the period up to
26 June 2015 (Note 24)

B 1T E BB i FH 8

R R R
BEE_FT-RFANA-TAHEL
I B8 - R MR

BRAENRE (MiF24)

2,022,362,301 2,000,000,000
- 4,798,894

13,194,493 =

Weighted average number
of shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings
per share

SHETRBHRTIN
A5 AT B

2,035,556,794 2,004,798,894

Diluted earnings per share
(HK cents)

srE#ERN G&il)

4.65 1.75

The effect of the share options granted on 19
August 2015 (Note 24) but outstanding on 31
December 2015 are not included in the computation
of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 as that was anti-dilutive.

RetEBEE—_Z—RAF+-_A=+
—BIEFE 2 BREERNE - I
Kt AR —_ZE—RAENATNALARE
i (fisEe4) BER=_ZF—RF+=
A=1+—BRRITENERE 2
2 REREAREEIUE -
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o o S R W R E
12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 9%¥ - BRERRE
Furniture,
fixtures and Computer Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment  improvements vehicles Total
BE %RE
PET Bl R RE @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER FER THT
As at 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE—-A—H
Cost A 8,577 9,366 8,484 3,061 29,488
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (7,041) (8,037) (6,564) (1,545) (23,187)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,536 1,329 1,920 1516 6,301
For the year ended HE-ZT-IF
31 December 2014 +ZA=+-RALEE
Opening net carrying amount FNREZE 1,536 1,329 1,920 1516 6,301
Exchange adjustments P 5 AR (29) 9 4 (37) (53)
Additions NE 456 1,665 1,285 = 3,406
Depreciation & (537) (715) (943) (397) (2,592)
Closing net carrying amount FRERFE 1,426 2288 2,266 1,082 7,062
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-EF+=-A=1+-H
Cost A 8,632 10,620 9,330 2,937 31,519
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (7,206) (8,332) (7,064) (1,855) (24,457)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,426 2,288 2,266 1,082 7,062
For the year ended HE-T-1F
31 December 2015 TZA=T-BLLEE
Opening net carrying amount FNEEFE 1,426 2,288 2,266 1,082 7,062
Exchange adjustments A% (94) (117) (126) (87) (424)
Additions NE 596 5,652 50 - 6,298
Depreciation e (607) (1,324) (1,250) (358) (3,539)
Closing net carrying amount EREESFE 1,321 6,499 940 637 9,397
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE-AF+-fF=1+-H
Cost R 8,334 15,104 8,761 2,668 34,867
Accumulated depreciation 2:E (7,013) (8,605) (7,821) (2,031) (25,470)
Net carrying amount FRFE 1,321 6,499 940 637 9,397
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13 #EFEE

Computer
software
B4
HK$’000
FHTT
As at 1 January 2014 RZE—UF—HA—H
Cost B A 6,522
Accumulated amortisation RETHEEH (6,265)
Net carrying amount BREFE 257
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-_Z—NWE+-_A=+—RHILFE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 257
Exchange adjustments P& X AR 22
Additions NE 5,350
Amortisation i (546)
Closing net carrying amount FARIEREFE 5,083
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H
Cost A 11,610
Accumulated amortisation Rt (6,527)
Net carrying amount BREFE 5,083
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_Z—AF+-_A=+—HIt&E
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 5,083
Exchange adjustments bE X SR (524)
Additions NE 4,982
Amortisation R (1,862)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 7,679
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+ZHA=+—H
Cost AR 15,416
Accumulated amortisation RET 5 (7,737)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,679
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14

15

128

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 14

HtEWRIE - ANRERERS

DEPOSITS
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-lmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT THET
Rental and utility deposits He R ARAREES 4,825 2,817
Prepayments SELNEOE 1,733 1,321
Others receivables H b fE UG FRIE 506 2,452
Total 4t 7,064 6,590

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables
and deposits approximate to their fair values.

AV

HE

AEBEEMEYGRIARIZ SR RMERE
'fﬁ o o

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15 PTESRITA
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-lF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHIT
Current assets RBEE
Derivative foreign exchange contracts  $T449MNEA 4 224,859 55,544
Current liabilities REBEE
Derivative foreign exchange contracts — $T4INE A 4 (3,414) (4,662)
Total azt 221,445 50,882
The Group has trades in foreign currencies through its REBBEBEINERFB SR HEBEITIN

foreign currency margin trading business. In order to
protect against exchange rate movements, the Group has
entered into a number of foreign exchange and forward
transactions with the Group’s bankers to manage its net
foreign currency exposure.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2015 and
2014 are HK$10,566,270,000 and HK$2,458,651,000
respectively.

X5 BRREFAEETTEXRKBT
& KREBRAEFERBITILZIBINE K
BERRZAERHINERRIFE o

R-E—AFER_ZT-—MNME+-_A=+
—H BAFRRHIIELAHHN B R
K 4 % o Bl £10,566,270,0007 7T &

2,458,651,000/% 7T °
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BALANCES DUE FROM AGENTS 16 BEWRELER
2015 2014
—E—-1F —T—HEF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
THET FET
Balances due from: JE U 4 84
— securities agents — FHERE 41,859 12,099
The carrying amounts of the Group’s balances due from AEERKRBAESHOERMEEE AR E
agents approximate to their fair values. The Group is HBE - AEBE R B RIEEZENRIE
free to withdraw the funds from accounts maintained with TN HEREAME S
these agents at any time.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT 17 HBERBITEBUEREF{ETHRITHE

TRUST BANK BALANCES

5

2015 2014

—E-51F%F —TmF

HK$’°000 HK$ 000

THET FET

Cash and bank balances NE NMIRTTES 371,655 318,649
Fixed deposits with banks IRITE TR 95,373 70,570
Client trust bank balances REEFRITES 308,997 149,966
776,025 539,185

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its
own obligations in the ordinary course of business,
and therefore they are not included as cash and cash
equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, fixed deposits of
HK$94,014,000 and HK$45,497,000 respectively are
pledged to banks for banking facilities. No overdraft
facility was utilised by the Group as at 31 December 2015
and 2014. No bank deposits are collateral deposits by
the Group placed with market makers as at 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil).

AEENERECREEREEREREL
RFE - MARETEFXRAE - REHBRZNF
R ARETASAEFPMNERBERR
FRAEXEBHERTNES - BHZFER
RY EFARSRERTIERERRE

R-ZE—AFR-_ZT—NF+_A=1+—
H ' 94,014,000% T K&45,497,000% 7T
B EHFE RS RIS RITEEER THRT -
RZE-—RAFR-_ZE—NF+_A=+—
H AEERESHREMELE R_T
—hAFE+ZA=+—H BERTERAE
REERMERRTFENERER (2%
—PO%F : &) o
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17

18
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES

AND CLIENT 17

TRUST BANK BALANCES (continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow

REeERBRITEHRUAREFERRBRTE

Bk (%)

IRERERERME  RERREEFE

statements, cash and cash equivalents comprises of the YIBIEATSIE :
following:
2015 2014
—B-AfF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Cash and bank balances e NIRTTA R 371,655 318,649
Fixed deposits with bank with original  [REJR =18 A R F|HIH
maturity within three months RITEBIER 1,359 25,073
373,014 343,722
FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS 18 mEHSERE

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to

the lease asset revert to the lessor in the event of default.

HERBEER L AHEEEEMER
BEBNEME  ZEEMNSERLA

I
2015 2014
—E-RE —F—MmEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Gross finance lease liabilities RMEHEARERS
— minimum lease payments — RS
Not later than 1 year —F RN 46 47
Later than 1 year and —FRERAFA
no later than 5 years 19 73
65 120
Future finance charges on EEAERNRRBER
finance leases (3) (6)
Present value of finance lease liabilities &R E & ERE 62 114
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FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (continued) 18 ®EHEERE (&)
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: BEHEABRBRENT
2015 2014
—E-1F —F-MmOF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TAETT
Not later than 1 year —FR 43 41
Later than 1 year and —FEEAFA
no later than five years 19 73
62 114
The Group leases various vehicles under non-cancellable AREBREAAFHENBEREHZHMA
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are 3 to 5 ETEm o HEMA=ZATF  r MEEMN
years and ownership of the assets lie within the Group. BB AREFMA o
DEFERRED TAXATION 19 EEHIE
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an B EATERERN A SRR e A E B BN HI R
individual entity basis when there is a legal right to set A EERE MELERED MR —EE
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and BF - BIE] S @ B E A BB IE B 1B & = B
when the deferred taxation relates to the same authority. BEEKY  RERREI EERANSEE
The following amounts, without taking into consideration (W RIS 4EER) BT -
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction,
are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZT -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered RIER IR E B
after more than twelve months (EBR1218 A & U mE ) 1,893 947
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled REFIEAE
after more than twelve months (#1128 A &2 f) (620) (133)
1,273 814
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 19 EEHE (&)
The major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BERIBEE (BF) WEEHDD AL
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the AEEAGBRA  MRFRMEBNT :

20

132

movements during the year are as follows:

Other
Employee temporary
benefits Depreciation differences Total
Hit
EEER E EBMESR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2014 MR- ZT— P4
—HA—H 165 (149) 248 264
Exchange adjustments R (25) 13 (50) (62)
Credit for the year FRETA 229 3 380 612
At 31 December 2014 R-E—OF
+=-—A=+—H 369 (133) 578 814
At 1 January 2015 MR_ZE—R4F
—H—H 369 (133) 578 814
Exchange adjustments PE X A% (66) 13 (69) (122)
(Charge)/credit for the year &R (31B) EA 891 (500) 190 581
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF
+-A=+—8 1,194 (620) 699 1,273
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 20 HfiEARERESEE
2015 2014
—E—-1F —F—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Accrued rental benefit JEETHE & RS 322 295
Accrued audit fees ERTEZE A 2,041 2,261
Accruals JEETE 5,352 2,446
Commission payable FEfAE 12,574 7,385
Employee entitlements EE#ER 33,811 1,862
Deferred revenue TEIE W 25 562 1,043
Other payables H b fE A 5RIE 2,701 1,866
57,363 17,158
The carrying amounts of the Group's other payables AEBHEMEMNRENEAEREREARE

approximate to their fair values. BE -
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CLIENTS’ BALANCES 21

The balances represent margin deposits received from
clients and the unrealised profit on loss from their trading
activities under normal course of business. The carrying
amounts approximate to their fair values.

fok o B S A M

BEFERR
ZEBBREREREBBIETUNELH
RESFEAMBRFETEEEINARER
A EE - REEEEAAEREE -

SHARE CAPITAL 22 [N
Number of Issued
shares share
in issue capital
BT
BHEE BERITRA
HK$°000
FET
As at 1 January 2014 and RZE—OFE—A—HRK
31 December 2014 —E-—WNFE+-_HA=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
As at 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RFE—A—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issuance of new ordinary shares upon {T{EEMRERIZEITH
exercise of share options (Note 24) LB (KE24) 33,040,000 330
As at 31 December 2015 WN-_ZE—RFE+_B=+—8H 2,033,040,000 20,330

CAPITAL RESERVE 23

The balance represents the difference between the book
value of the net assets of KVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited, KVB Kunlun Pty Limited and KVB Kunlun
International (HK) Limited over the par value of the
shares issued by LXL Capital Il Limited, LXL Capital Il
Limited and LXL Capital IV Limited in exchange for these
subsidiaries as part of the reorganisation completed in
2012.

BEXRf#E

% # # $8KVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited * KVB Kunlun Pty Limited & & &
B (F8) BRAREEFENREE
EAL XL Capital Il Limited * LXL Capital
Il Limited X LXL Capital IV Limited{E%&
RIE-——FRAHEA—BORAURHR
% BT B 1 B BT A AR BV TEE 2 T Y
EH o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 January 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company has granted 40,000,000 share options to 68
individuals for their subscription of new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 per share of the Company.

These share options were exercisable at HK$0.414 per
share, with varying vesting period and validity from the
date of grant. 40 out of 68 of the Grantees were granted
share options which were exercisable for a period of three
years and a vesting period of one year from the date of
grant. 28 remaining Grantees were granted share options
which were exercisable for a period of two years from
the date of grant, with a vesting period of two years from
the date of grant. All of the share options had no vesting
condition. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
14,920,000 share options were granted to six Directors
of the Company.

The Group had no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

24

BREE

R-ZE—NMFE—A+H ARREEEM
684 A +3%$40,000,0001) BEA%#E - 1%
EREANRFREEC.ONBITHFH LB
& o

ZEBREAIRERRMGH0.414BTHE
BTUATE - BREBHRTNEBE X
EHAAF R - 68BER AFH40BER A
BEAIR=FHRAANTENERE - H8
HERE AR A —F - AT 285
BABERABRE BB MESR/MATT
FERERE  BEBHEREBHEFT AH
ME - FTEEREAESBGG - 2D
#40,000,0001p R HEH « RARIASBE
FEK 14,920,000 BEILAE -

AEEYELRFIHETREENRSEDR
REERRE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 24 BRESTE (&)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding MARITEREBRES B 28T ¢
are as follows:
Outstanding Lapsed/  Outstanding
as at 31 Forfeited ~ Exercised  Cancelled as at 31
Date of December during during during  December  Exercise Exercise
Grantee grant 2014 the year the year the year 2015 price period
R i
Z%-Rf E-1f
T2 N T8
Sf-8 R  nEREM/ -8
ERA RipH HATE #RN  REAGE Bt HATE ke 78
(Note (a)) HKS
(B3t () iy
Liu Stefan 10 January 2014 9,520,000 - (9,520,000) - - 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
i “5-mE-At “3-EF-AtH
E2E-\F
S
Ng Chee Hung Frederick 10 January 2014 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
st “5-mE-At TR ATAE
“5-\§-ANA
Stephen Gregory McCoy 10 January 2014 800,000 - (800,000) - - 0414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
Stephen Gregory McCoy “2-TE-A+A “Z-n5-AtRZ
ZZ-\&-ANA
Zhao Guixin 10 January 2014 200,000 - (200,000) - - 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
iclid ZE-ME-A1R “E-R5-R1AZ
ZZ-\E-ANA
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser 10 January 2014 200,000 - (200,000) - - 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser “2-TE-A+H “Z-1%-A1HZ
“5-\§-AnA
Lin Wenhui 10 January 2014 200,000 - (200,000) - - 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
oUE ZE-ME-ATA “E-RE-ATAZ
“Z-\&-ANA
Employees of group companies 10 January 2014 18,140,000 - (16,920,000)  (1,220,000) - 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
$8ATER “3-mf-Ata “§-5F-F1AE
ZZ-\&-ANR
Employees of group companies 10 January 2014 2,210,000 (50,000) - (2,220,000) - 0.414 10 January 2016 to
\ 9 January 2018
SEATES “E-ME-A1A “ENE-RTRE
“Z-\E-ANA
Consultants 10 January 2014 1,200,000 - (1,200,000) - - 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
B ZE-IE-A1R “E-RE-ATAZ
ZZ-\&-ANA
Consultants 10 January 2014 1,750,000 - - (1,750,000) - 0414 10 January 2016 to
9 January 2018
Ef “2-ME-ATE “ENE-ATRE
ZZ-\E-ANR
38,280,000 (50,000)  (33,040,000)  (5,190,000) -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)

Cancellation

Subsequent to the acquisition of approximately
60% of the ordinary shares of the Company by
CITIC Securities Company Limited, as mentioned
in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
an unconditional mandatory general cash offer
was made by CITIC Securities to the then holders
of outstanding options issued by the Company on
29 May 2015 pursuant to Rules 26.1 and 13.5 of
the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
at a consideration of HK$0.236 of each of the
respective share options for cancellation of the
outstanding options (the “Offer”). The offer was
closed on 26 June 2015.

Out of the 16,910,000 outstanding share options on
29 May 2015, 12,940,000 options were exercisable
and 3,970,000 remain unvested. Subsequent to 29
May 2015:

. 11,720,000 vested options were exercised
at a price of HK$0.414 prior to the Offer
closing date;

o the share option holders of 520,000 vested
options and 3,870,000 unvested options
accepted the offer and received cash
consideration made by CITIC Securities at
HK$0.236 per option;

o for the remaining 700,000 vested options
remaining unexercised and 100,000
unvested options which the share option
holders hereof did not accept the Offer,
these options were automatically lapsed
and are not exercisable after 29 June 2015,
being one month after the Offer becomes or
is declared unconditional;

The share option expenses of the unvested share
options amounting to HK$131,000 were recognised
immediately to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and the corresponding
share option reserves balance of HK$638,000 was
transferred to the retained earnings during the
current period.

24

BRERR (F)

(a)

BE7]
FEREILHFRDBRARMEAR
AIAI60% EBARE © WAL A B 75
HMAM FITM - BEFBREU
B RA PRI AI26.1%13.5 * F
FEHFER-_ZE—hERA-tAH
AN &) FTEE 1T s AR 7715 B IR A /Y
ERFAAEDEKRERFESE
HEY]D  REABHESESE
B B8 A% 420.23678 7T © AT EH M R
TEERE - BNER=_T—RF
NAZHARBEIE -

R-E—RFRA-_tHABEX
7 1 #916,910,00017 B A% # & -
12,940,00017 BERREE /T - M
3,970,000 IR ERIDAKRFE °
R-ZE—RFRA-tHhHEE:

. 11,720,00017 B 57 B8 B i 4
REAE 1F B HA11£0.414
BITHEREITE

o 520,00017 B 57 B8 BB AR 7 &
3,870,000% K 57 & i I% #E
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I

. WL TN 700,000170 i K 1718
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BREREALSEENE
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24 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

Valuation of options granted

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used
to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Details of the share options granted
on 10 January 2014 was as follows:

Weighted average share HK$0.1227
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 1.154%

Expected volatility: 42.92%

Expected dividend vyield: 1.96%

Expected exercise multiple:  Directors: 2.8x of
exercise price
Others: 2.2x of the

exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 10
January 2014, being the date of grant of the share
options. The expected dividend yield is determined
with reference to historical dividend payment
history of comparable listed companies up to the
measurement date. The expected volatility of share
price is determined with reference to annualised
historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date,
as extracted from Bloomberg.

Share option expenses of HK$351,000 were
charged during the vyear, which included
HK$131,000 arising from the unvested options
cancelled during the period (Note (a)), to the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

fok o B S A M

24 BRESTE (&)

(b)

EREBRENGE

ZIRAHIRE E B R AR R ARG
BRENRAE FHEEREAR
BANEHRLRBRIDERESH
REMGG - BREEERX LIS
RENBRIAME L - R _F—
ME—ATRRHHBERENFS
LI

s qan =k i1 ) 0.12277C
IETFIRRE -

R R A 1.154%

TAHRR IR - 42.92%

TBEREX - 1.96%

HHITEES :  EE: TEE28E

Hig - 7EB2.21%

BERENGERNAS T —NF—
A+B  AREERENEE -8
HREXRD2EANELR ET AR
HEFERHAMNBERESN R
MExE - RENARKESERHE
BEBHAELR EMRRRRE
BENGBAHNFERCAEEEN
TR EEE

F N EE A RO B AR B ] 52.351,000/%8
T BEMREEAGEEREE
A #131,0005% 7T (Bt 5E(a)) B &f
AGERAERER

137



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy [ [ 4 il 4 [ A BR /A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B A 5 WA M

24

138

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 19 August 2015, the Board of Directors of the
Company granted 40,000,000 share options to 95
individuals (“Grantees”) for their subscription of new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.95 per
share, with varying vesting period and validity from the
date of grant. 35 out of 95 of the Grantees were granted
share options which are exercisable for a period of three
years commencing on the date of grant to 18 August
2018. 12 out of 95 of the Grantees were granted share
options which are exercisable for a period of three years
commencing on the date falling on the first anniversary of
the date of grant to 18 August 2019, with a vesting period
of one year from the date of grant. The remaining 48
Grantees were granted options which are exercisable for
a period of two years commencing on the date falling on
the second anniversary of the date of grant to 18 August
2019, with a vesting period of two years from the date
of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to the directors
and chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

BIRERTE (&)

RZZ—RAFNA+IBE ARAEFE
mo5% AL ([ AJ) % 140,000,000
DERE  HESREARFTBRATZR
E{E0.01 T AT LAk o

ZE IR TR AR 0.9578 LA (B 1§
FUTE  ARHASETNEBHEE
WERE R - 95 B R AP HIBSHER AR
BTREL RS E_TE—\FNA
TNBAILE=F 7 BREAITE 2 BAKE -
SHERATH1 2B BT ABR T AINE
LA —EFEARTE_S—NF/N\A
TNBAILE=FZBRAITE 2 BAKE -
GEAAAKELE AHBI —F - #2748
ZEFRANERTIREHASEMAEFER
BAZE=ZZT—NAEFENA+N\BALRFEZ
HEATE 2 BRE  SEHAHKRLA
B FE 5T W o B % H #940,000,00017 H#E
iEF - ARREBEREETHABER
12,200,00017 FE AR HE °

AEEYEEIEIEEREAREBE K
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 24 BRAETTE (&)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding BARITERERESE ST !
are as follows:
Outstanding Outstanding
as at 31 Granted Forfeited Exercised As at 31
Date of December during during during December  Exercise Exercise
Grantee grant 2014 the period the period the period 201345 price period
R A
—E-NE “E-1E
= =
=t-A NHW ) =t-8 ) )
. 3:IN RiAH HATE  RHREY wRE RERGR HARITE HEK% s
BT
Liu Stefan 19 August 2015 - 8,300,000 - - 8,300,000 095 19 August 2015 o
, 18 August 2018
I “F-EFAAAA “E-RENATARZ
“E-\ENATAR
Ng Chee Hung Frederick 19 August 2015 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 095 19 August 2015 o
18 August 2018
RIS ZE-RENATNR “E-R§NATNAZ
“E-\ENATAR
Stephen Gregory McCoy 19 August 2015 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.95 19 August 2015 to
18 August 2018
Stephen Gregory McCoy “E-RE)\ATNA “Z-RE\ATNAZ
“E-\ENATAR
Zhao Guixin 19 August 2015 - 300,000 - - 300,000 095 19 August 2015t
18 August 2018
M ZE-RENATAR ZE-nENATNAZ
“E-N\ENATAR
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser 19 August 2015 - 300,000 - - 300,000 095 19 August 2015 o
18 August 2018
Corenlis Jacabus Keyser ZE-RENATAR “Z-75\ATNAZ
“Z-\FNATAR
Lin Wenhui 19 August 2015 - 300,000 - - 300,000 095 19 August 2015t
18 August 2018
e ZZ-REN\ATNB “Z-aE\AThBE
“F-\FN\ATNR
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 - 16,800,000 (100,000) - 16,700,000 095 19 August 2015 to
18 August 2018
SENTEE ZE-RENATAR “Z-nF/\AThAZ
“Z-\FN\ATNR
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 - 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 095 19 August 2016 to
18 August 2019
SENTEE ZE-RENATAA ZE-E\ATNAZ
“F-hENATAR
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 - 8,000,000 (1,260,000) - 6,740,000 095 19 August 2017 to
18 August 2019
NG ZE-RENATAR ZE-tE\ATNAZ
“T-hENATAR
Consultants 19 August 2015 - 950,000 - - 950,000 095 19 August 2016 to
18 August 2019
B ZE-RENATAR ZE-E\ATNAZ
“Z-nENATAR
Consultants 19 August 2015 - 800,000 - - 800,000 095 19 August 2017 to
18 August 2019
BA ZE-1ENATNA ZE-tE\ATNAZ
“E-nENATAR
- 40,000,000 (1,360,000) - 38,640,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to
estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Details of the share options
granted on 19 August 2015 was as follows:

Weighted average share option HK$0.3246
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 0.821%
Expected volatility: 59.08%
Expected dividend yield: 1.63%

Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 19
August 2015, being the date of grant of the share options.
The expected dividend yield is determined with reference
to historical dividend payment history of comparable
listed companies up to the measurement date. The
expected volatility of share price is determined with
reference to annualised historical weekly volatility of
comparable listed companies’ share prices as of the
valuation date, as extracted from Bloomberg.

A total
were recognised in the consolidated statement of

of HK$9,551,000 share option expenses

comprehensive income during the current year.

BRERR (F)

— IR 5 MR (RSO A DA 14 B AR
MR M - SR IRIER fu (E AT

R TN E BB 2 o IR
EREETBRENEBRTRATR - 1
—T-RFN\ATABEROEREN
BT

RELBERME  0.324687T

T REREER -
R A X 0.821%
TEERR IR 59.08%
TEEREX 1.63%
TR TS - 5% TRE2.8F

Hig - 17EE2.21%

BERENAERMA-Z-AFNAATAL
B AREERENBE - BHREXTS
2EMNEHNBR T AREZERHNA
ERENRECEMETE - BEN B IE
2ERBAZENAELR LT RARK
BEREMEAPNFELEESEKEM
BT -

RNEFRZEE RN RERR B ER
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BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT 25 ZXAREEEBRREEED
OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company ARFzEERR/E
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-RF —FE-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBRAZKE 66,448 8,109
66,448 8,109
Current assets REEE
Cash and bank balances IS RIRTTAER 120,795 139,663
Amounts due from a subsidiary FEU— M B A R 2 FUE 14,276 14,244
Loans to a subsidiary wT—HB AR ZER 62,008 50,409
Prepayments B FIE 628 611
Total current assets REBEELE 197,707 204,927
Total assets EEH#E 264,155 213,036
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EZREaE
Share capital B& 7N 20,330 20,000
Reserves (Note (a)) s (K1aE(a)) 189,828 171,378
Retained earnings IREE B R 32,939 6,028
Total equity RERYAEE 243,097 197,406
Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries Sl NGRS 19,157 13,901
Other payables and Hih A RIERETAE
accrued liabilities 1,901 1,729
Total liabilities =Lt ot 21,058 15,630
Total equity and liabilities HEXREE 264,155 213,036

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 18 March 2016 and was signed on

its behalf.

Liu Stefan
v

ARREERBEREEFEN_FT—RF
ZATN\AHESRERE -

=

Ng Chee Hung Frederick
RER
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25 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT 25 ZXAGzEEERERKHESRS (&)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company Mizt(a)A DRI 2 ERE
Retained
Reserves earnings
& REZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2014 R=-Z—NFE—H—H 166,928 1,335
Profit for the year FEm A = 28,193
Share option scheme BERRRE=T 2 4,450 _
Dividends BB - (23,500)
As at 31 December 2014 NR—ZFE—NE+_-_HA=+—~A” 171,378 6,028
As at 1 January 2015 R=-ZB—HE—H—H 171,378 6,028
Profit for the year FERF - 56,442
Share option scheme BT 2 9,792 -
Insurance of new ordinary shares 1T IR R BE 1T Y
upon exercise of share options i mak 9,296 4,052
Release of share option reserves oF R AR RE ST IR AR S
upon cancellation of share option BENRREGE
scheme (638) 638
Dividends IR - (34,221)
As at 31 December 2015 N-—_EBE—FRFE+-_H=+—H 189,828 32,939
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AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

26 EEKSREEENME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ EZ=ME
Emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the ARBEE_T - AFR=FT O
Company by the Group during the years ended 31 FHZ A=+ HLEFERARAR
December 2015 and 2014. BENEANHE -
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE_B-RF+-A=t—HL
FE
Estimated
Employer’s Dis-  value of
contribution cretionary other
Director ~ Salaryand to pension  bonuses  benefits
Name of director E=pg fee commission scheme  (Note (b))  (Note (a)) Total
HitRAIN
ek EIRHE BEEL  HHEE
- E20kA Be  HEER  (WiEb)  (WiHe) o
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR TR THER T TR
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr Liu Stefan AMEEE 120 384 18 15,450 2,858 18,830
Mr Ng Chee Hung Frederick REBLE 120 827 18 1,490 636 3,091
Non-executive Directors: FHUTES:
Mr Li Zhi Da FEERE 60 - - - - 60
Mr Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory
McCoy %t & 60 - - 491 314 865
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Ms Zhao Guixin HEETL 120 - - - %4 214
Mr Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Comelis Jacobus
Keysers & 120 - - - 94 214
Mr Lin Wenhui BT E 120 - - - 94 214
720 1,211 36 17,431 4,090 23,488
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26 DIRECTORS’

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

144

26 EERSAETEENME (&)

Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEMe (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—N&F+-F=+—HL
(Restated) FE (EH)
Certain of the comparative information of BERBE(RAED) AEER
director's emoluments for the year ended E-T-NME=ZA=+—BIF
31 December 2014 previously disclosed in FEES M)iﬁ i ;ET THBERE E
accordance with the predecessor Companies Eﬁ”ﬁ' Mﬁé%‘iﬁ<aﬂ fex 1) (5
Ordinance have been restated in order to 6223 ) RYRTHRME SRTE °
comply with the new scope and requirements
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622).
Estimated
Employer's Dis-  value of
contribution  cretionary other
Director  Salaryand  to pension  bonuses  benefits
Name of director ESHh% fee  commission scheme  (Note (b)) (Note (a)) Total
Xl
ek EIRKE BEEL @EHEE
EYika RBe AR W) (HEE) b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT THL T THL THT T
Executive Directors: HTES .
Mr. Liu Stefan HmeExE 120 365 17 30 1,383 1,915
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick REBLE 120 788 17 66 480 1,471
Non-executive Directors: FHUTES:
Mr. Li Zhi Da TERELLE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory
McCoy% £ 60 - - - 9 156
Independent Non-executive BUFHITES
Directors:
Ms. Zhao Guixin BEBLL 120 - - - 24 144
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Comelis Jacobus
Keyserfc 120 - - - 24 144
Mr. Lin Wenhui WX EEE 120 - - - 24 144
720 1,153 34 96 2,031 4,034

During the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014, no directors of the Group waived
any emoluments and no emolument was paid
to any of the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

Note (a):Other benefits include housing allowance
and share option.

BE_Z—HFE-_ZT—NF+=
BA=+—HLEFE BEAEEE
ERETMMNE  BEAEERTES
e FERNES  EBMAR
& B 5N A B B S8 Eh ok 1 A BB 1

f& -

Wiit(a) - B im v B 1A EEER KB
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26 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 26 EENEAEHEENME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME (&)

Note (b): Certain executive directors of the Company are Bistb) - R AR EFRITEEZAMIE
entitled to discretionary bonus payments which TEAIEIE  BEZIAIRESE
are determined with reference to the Group’s NRNEBM QLS  BE2Y
operating results, individual performance of the BARERIEETEGER
directors and relevant market statistics during the MEE o
year.

2015 2014
—F-1fF —TmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Emoluments paid or receivable in FIEAARMETESE (TH2
respect of a person’s services RAISHEMBRR) BRTE

as a director, whether of i 2 s e &

the company or its subsidiary

undertaking 720 720
Emoluments paid or receivable  BEBHRIREEE QG HHE

in respect of director’s other NAIEEOEMARE

services in connection with (=R Gl

the management of the affairs
of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking 22,768 3,314

23,488 4,034
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26 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 26 EZERSKAEEENEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) EHERBHFAL
The five highest paid employees during the years %ﬂi;‘:‘::;ﬁ—ﬁi&:%—gfi:
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 included E:\—'—_ Eiig;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂg
two and three directors respectively, details of ;E‘:”’DJ‘EJ@\EFH%&:;%i% © H
whose remuneration are set out in Note 26(a) e d fk_ﬁf‘{:XDW ﬁ?ia_) °§§%
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining #%%%’E%ﬂggﬁfﬁf—g_ﬁ
non-directors, highest paid employees during the ﬁ)}—?_;mi—'\——ﬂ:—'—_ B1E
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as FENMESFBEHINAT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-lF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Salary and commission Fe ke 2,497 1,728
Employer’s contribution to BEFRKESFEIHK
pension scheme 195 34
Discretionary bonuses BI5TEAT 8,027 150
10,719 1,912
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals BE_Z—HFEK_ZE—MNF+_A=+
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group —HIEFE - *%ﬁﬂé%%Aiﬁ1#@ﬂ;%f’E
or as compensation for loss of office during the AINAAER B 3% 00 A B B 22 ok 1 A B B
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. e -
The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of AEE&EEFAL BRESI) NFHHE
the Group other than the directors fall within the RIAT ST
following bands:
2015 2014
—2-4fF —T-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Emolument bands #r g
— HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 — 087 21,000,000 7 - 1
~ HK$1,000,001 to — 1,000,001 7=
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
- HK$1,500,001 to — 1,500,001 TE
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
- HK$2,000,001 to — 2,000,001/ BLE
HK$2,500,000 2,500,000 7T 1 -
— HK$5,000,001 to — 5,000,001 TE
HK$5,500,000 5Y500‘000;‘9§7TE 1 _
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

27 R-ENERRAZRE

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had direct and R-ZZ—AF+-_A=1+—8  ARFAR
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: THE R R R B R EEER
Issued share
capital/Particulars
Place of incorporation Principal activities and of issued Equity
Company name and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
‘ BRIRE/
RRER AR IBRR AR ERER TERBRAENY BRTREFE BENRE
LXL Capital | Limited"e® British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$200 100%
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (direct)
LXL Capital | Limitea” EERNHS  ARAA RERR  RERAHS 200%T 100%
(8%)
KVB Kunlun New Zealand New Zealand, Provision of leveraged foreign NZ$10,862,083 100%
Limited Limited liability company exchange services, New Zealand (indirect)
KVB Kunlun New Zealand @ - BRAA REEEANERT - AR 10,862,083 EHITT 100%
Limited ()
KVB Kunlun Securities (NZ) New Zealand, Inactive NZ$1,000,000 100%
Limited"e? Limited liability company (indirect)
KVB Kunlun Securities (NZ) R AR RIS 1,000,004 75 100%
Limited/#2 (%)
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited Australia, Limited liability company Provision of sales service, Australia AU$1,800,010 100%
(indirect)
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited BN - ERAR TRALHERE - R 1,800,010 100%
(i)
KVB Kunlun International (HK) ~ Hong Kong, Limited liability company  Provision of management services 100,000,000 100%
Limited and leveraged foreign exchange Ordinary shares (indirect)
trading services, Hong Kong
KVB Kunlun Intemnational (HK) &% + ARAE RUEBREREEANER SRS - BB 100,000,000 100%
Limited M iak (R#)
LXL Capital II Limited" British Virgin Island, Investment holding, British Virgin Island US$100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital Il Limited?<’ AERUAE  ARAF RERR  RERAES 100X 100%
(i)
LXL Capital III Limited"e ! British Virgin Island, Investment holding, British Virgin Island US$200 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital IIl Limited™*’ BERIAES  ABRAF RERR  RERAES 20057 100%
(i)
LXL Capital IV Limited"e British Virgin Island, Investment holding, British Virgin Island US$100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital IV Limited?” AERNAS  ARAA RERR  RERAHS 1007t 100%
(i)
LXL Capital IX Limited"e British Virgin Island, Investment holding, British Virgin Island US$100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital IX Limited?<’ AERUAE  ARAF RERR  RERAES 100X 100%
(i)
LXL Capital VIII Limitege ! British Virgin Island, Investment holding, British Virgin Island US$100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital VIl Limited™" BERIAES  ABRAF RERR  RERAES 100X 100%
(i)

147



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E iy [ [ 4 il 4 [ A BR /A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B A 5 WA M

27

28

148

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 27 R—EMEBARZRE (&)
Issued share
capital/Particulars
Place of incorporation Principal activities and of issued Equity
Company name and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
BRARE/
LKL AR BRRERRRER IERBRAEHY BRARARE BENRE
LXL Capital V Limited"e ! British Virgin Island, Investment holding, British Virgin Island US$100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital V Limited” AERIES  ARAT RELR  RERIES 1007 100%
(%)
Yorkastle Capital Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability company  Investment holding, Hong Kong 1,000,000 100%
Ordinary shares (indirect)
Yorkastle Capital Limited &% BRAF RERR &% 1,000,000 & &% 100%
(553
Zhuhai Henggin Kunlun People’s Republic of China, Provision of financial services, RMB10,000,000 100%
Financial Exchange Limited Limited liability company People’s Republic of China (indirect)
KERERRMEBIATL hEARLNE  ARAR RESHRE - HEARKAE AR#10,000,0007 100%
ARAE (A%)

Note 1:No audited financial statements have been prepared as
these companies are incorporated in a jurisdiction which
does not have any statutory audit requirements.

Note 2: The company is newly incorporated and has no operation
during the current year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

As disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, subsequent to the completion of the
Transaction on 29 May 2015, CITIC Securities Overseas
becomes the immediate holding company and CITIC
Securities becomes the ultimate holding company of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group did not have any significant transaction with CITIC
Securities and its related companies.

Subsequent to the completion of the Transaction, KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited owns 14.76% of issued shares
of the Company. Accordingly, companies owned by
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited ceased to be the fellow
subsidiaries and are now referred to as “other related
parties” as they are controlled by some common key
management personnel.

28

Wret1 - BREZE R A MK 7 HY A2 1 0 5
EDEEFERHNE - LR RAEFE
B

Wiat2 : Z R AR FEF ML AREF

BB AR Z

i —77 AR N E SRR ES S — T A
MBEREERR LB RS- T EEEATE
ho EHABAREE - X ARESE
TR A AR -

A BHRRMFEIARE  R_F—
FFAAZTNAARSERIEK - PELF
BN BBEEZERAR - RIEEFKABR
SEREKERQR -BE_T-—AF =
A=Z1t—BLEFE AEERPEESFR
HEM A RN EETEMNERRS -

R FEK R 5 % KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited# £ A 2 Al B B TR D &
14.76% ° B it - KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited#EEH AR T B AR ZMBEAR] -
BERHMEEs ] RARKSEHET
HEFEBTEABTS -
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 28 RBEHARES (&)

For the outstanding balance due from or to related MEW K EN B TN REEEHRTE
parties, net amount is presented when the Group has $%@*ﬁ%m&%ﬁ%lﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmégﬁﬁﬁ :
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized WHHRF AL TR 20 S5FE -

amounts, and intends to settle on a net basis.

(@) The Group had the following material transactions (a) AEERFANEEBEHRERETH
with its related entities during the year: BERRZUOT :
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-mF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
HiaF FTHERT FHT
Transactions x5
Management fee income for AT A &) BN 2
the provision of group SEERE - BB -
management, IT, marketing and  Wi5H#E RITH
administration support from: TERNEEBRA (i)
— other related parties — H {th B B 1,256 2,019

Management fee expense for AT AR IR

the provision of information BEARREE
technology support, financial B R R Rt e
system and websites RS - MIBHEE -
maintenance services, PR K ETRREY
marketing promotion, customer EEBHRY :
services and reconciliation to: (i)
— the then immediate holding — SR EEERAR
company 983 799
— other related parties — H{th B - 361

Amount paid for the provision AT AR IR MH

of software development B A
and maintenance services, fR7 « BalEHLEE
IT infrastructure project BB BB R EERE

management and maintenance R &R AR
services and IT risk assessment  ZF{4 BRTEH) 7108

services to: (i)

— an other related party — H fth B 8,995 4,865
Due to related parties: JE A~ A 7 2108 (iv)

— other related parties — H fth B 73 488
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 28

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

(i) Management fee income is determined with
reference to the cost of provision of group
management, IT, marketing and administration

support services plus mark up.

(i) Management fee expenses are charged for the
provision of information technology support,
marketing, customer services and reconciliation,
financial system and web sites maintenance

services with reference to the costs incurred.

(i) Amounts are paid for provision of software
development and maintenance services,
IT infrastructure project management and
maintenance services and IT risk assessment

services.

(iv) Amounts due to related parties are unsecured,

non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Key management includes directors (executive
& non-executive) and the remuneration of the
key management personnel of the Group was as
follows:

RBAEXS (&)

(a)
Hiat

(1)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(b)

EHEEUATILEIEMEFEIE - K47l
B G RTTI SRR TS 1Y/ A
JIEEETE -

EHEEHS IR IEBEMFHZE 1
GitE  EPRBEREK - HMHERRER
AU RS DT EL N BTN

BIEHE TR RAEIRTS  BAFIR
BERE G RAEEREREAFF A
b G RIS T 19 B9 40R

JENT BB 7 R BT BB RER

AEETSERE (BEHTRE
HETEE) REISEEARNHH
mF :

2015 2014

—E—-HF —E—mEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FHET

Salary and other benefits #He NEMBER] 1,211 1,153
Employer’s contribution to pension EERRESFEIMER

scheme 36 34

Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 17,431 96

Other benefits HibraF| 960 960

Staff options scheme BT HERETE 3,850 1,791

23,488 4,034
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 29 AERBAEIE
Operating lease commitments REHEEIE
The Group leases offices under non-cancellable operating REBIRBENRSFERE BRI A HUEHL S
lease commitments existing at the year end. Leases were HEAEHERAE - HRTFH =2
negotiated for an average term of 3 to 6 years. FHER o
The Group is required to give six months notice for REEBEZELNEABALAIRIEZER
termination of these leases. =
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-IF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Within one year —FR 14,617 13,839
One to five years —Z2HRF 20,187 46,258
34,804 60,097
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 #HAEMB®RE

The financial statements were approved and authorized
for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016.

AMBHRRAEFER T RF=A+
NEHERITHETE
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A summary of the results and of the financial position of KVB MU THIEGBER S BREBER A A ([AA
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with 7| EREMB ATGE [ANEE]) BERE
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the last five financial years, as BHREE 2 #ERMHBRABE - HiEsEae T
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is & Tz 2 ISR ER

set out below.

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
=F-HF —T-NNF —T-=F B —FT——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET FHET FET FET

Total income Nk 406,811 188,634 176,719 123,222 155,241
Profit before tax BRI T 128,149 47,697 50,130 2,432 50,305
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(BE) 94,709 35,081 34,774 (1,749) 35,555
Total comprehensive income X2 E W R 4258

for the year 83,328 29,785 33,010 2,837 33,301

As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—F-Hf —F0NF —F-=F —F-—F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FAT FAT

Total assets BEHE 1,068,776 626,510 569,993 408,006 397,035
Total liabilities BERRE (603,366) (233,787) (187,894) (175,254) (210,211)

465,410 392,723 382,099 232,752 186,824

Total equity and liabilities RESKEE 1,068,776 626,510 569,993 408,006 397,035
Net current assets mBEEFE 447,080 379,837 375,403 226,470 180,930
Total assets less current BEERRHAE

liabilities 466,049 392,929 382,374 223,131 187,299
Note: Biat -

The summary of the financial information of the Group for each of two A EEFEZ —FE——FER —FT——FF+-F=—1+—HIF
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from the — FEFEZ I BHEEHBEHEEA AN A B =T —
prospectus of the Company dated 11 June 2013. Such summary was =F~NA+—HZFREFE - BEIHZ TR0 KEEFH
prepared as if the current structure of the Group had been in existence — FFZRIETEZZH K FE/E A —E 71 MAT R

throughout these financial years.
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